
 

Mr Richard Parry Jones, BA, MA. 
Prif Weithredwr – Chief Executive 
 
CYNGOR SIR YNYS MÔN 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices 
LLANGEFNI 
Ynys Môn - Anglesey 
LL77 7TW 
 
Ffôn / tel (01248) 752500 
Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839 

 
 

 

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD  NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO A 

GORCHMYNION 
 

 

PLANNING AND ORDERS 

COMMITTEE 
 

 

DYDD MERCHER, 5 RHAGFYR 

2012 

�  1.00 o’r gloch  � 

 

WEDNESDAY, 5 DECEMBER 

2012 

�  1.00 pm  � 

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR – SWYDDFEYDD Y 
CYNGOR, LLANGEFNI 

COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL 
OFFICES, LLANGEFNI 

Swyddog Pwyllgor 
Ann Holmes 

(01246) 752 518 
Committee Officer 

 

AELODAU / MEMBERS 
 
Cynghorwyr / Councillors: 
 

W J Chorlton 
E G Davies 
Lewis Davies 
R Dew 
Jim Evans 
K P Hughes 
W T Hughes 
Vaughan Hughes 
C McGregor 
R L Owen 
J A Roberts (Cadeirydd/Chair) 
Eric Roberts 
H W Thomas 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 

A g e n d a 
 
Members are reminded that background papers referred to within committee reports 
are available for inspection in electronic format on the day of the meeting at the 
Council Chamber from 12.30 p.m. onwards; alternatively these may be inspected at 
the Development Control section during normal office hours.  Documents referred to 
in reports may also be viewed in full on the electronic application files.  
 
Any additional information to hand following publication of reports will be verbally 
reported upon to the meeting.   
 
Before a decision notice is released conditions of approval or reasons for refusal 
given in written reports may be subject to minor amendments to account for 
typographical errors.  
 
Index 
 
1 APOLOGIES   
 
2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
 
3 MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 
To submit, for confirmation and signature, the minutes of the Planning and Orders 
Committee held on 7th November, 2012. 
 
4 SITE VISITS  (Pages 13 - 14) 
 
To submit the minutes of the site visit held on 21st November, 2012. 
 
5 PUBLIC SPEAKING   
 
6 APPLICATIONS THAT WILL BE DEFERRED  (Pages 15 - 22) 
 
6.1 – 10C114A – Tai Moelion, Ty Croes (1) 
 
6.2 – 37C174C – Tre Ifan, Brynsiencyn (3) 
 
6.3 – 39C285D – Lon Gamfa, Menai Bridge (5) 
 
6.4 – 41C103N – Ty Gwyn, Penmynydd (7) 
 
7 APPLICATIONS ARISING  (Pages 23 - 52) 
 
7.1 – 20C277 – Tai Hen, Rhosgoch (9) 
 
7.2 – 44C292 – Llety, Rhosybol (34) 
 
8 ECONOMIC APPLICATIONS   
 
None to be considered by this meeting. 
 



 
 

9 AFFORDABLE HOUSING APPLICATIONS   
 
None to be considered by this meeting. 
 
10 DEPARTURE APPLICATIONS  (Pages 53 - 60) 
 
10.1 – 24C268E – Gwelfor, Cerrigman (52) 
 
11 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS AND 
OFFICERS  (Pages 61 - 70) 
 
11.1 – 19C1015A – English Methodist Church, Longford Road, Holyhead (61) 
 
11.2 – 49C171G/1 – 4 Gorwelion,Y Fali (66) 
 
12 REMAINDER OF APPLICATIONS  (Pages 71 - 86) 
 
12.1 – 11C591 – 16 - 21Bor Trehirion, Amlwch (70) 
 
12.2 – 19C1105 – 1-2 Llys Watling, Caergybi (75) 
 
12.3 – 46LPA965/CC – Lôn ISallt, Trearddur (79) 
 
12.4 – 48LPA851C/CC – Canolfan Ailgylchu Gwalchmai, Gwalchmai (83) 
 
13 OTHER MATTERS  (Pages 87 - 90) 
 
13.1 – 33C258A – Cefn Poeth, Penmynydd (90) 
 
13.2 – 37LPA968/CC – Bryn Derwydd, Brynsiencyn (92) 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

COMMITTEENAME  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on MeetingDate 
 
 
PRESENT:   
 

ChairPresentList (Chair) 
ViceChPresentList (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors MembersPresentUsrTyp(C)ShortSubsList 
 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: OfficerInAttendanceOnlyTitlesRows 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillor MembersExcuseShortList 
OfficerExcuseOnlyTitlesList 
GuestExcuseRepresentingList 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Councillor CountycouncillorInAttendanceRepresentingShortList 
GuestInAttendanceRepresentingList 

  

 
 

 
 
  

 COUNCILLOR <NAME> 

 CHAIR 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING SITE VISITS 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 21 November, 2012 

PRESENT: Councillor J. Arwel Roberts – Chair 
 
Councillors E.G. Davies, Richard A. Dew, Jim Evans,  
K.P. Hughes, Vaughan Hughes, Clive McGregor, R.L. Owen, 
Eric Roberts. 

IN ATTENDANCE: Team Leader (Planning) (NJ), 
Committee Officer (MEH), 
Administrative Assistant (SC). 

APOLOGIES: Councillor Lewis Davies. 

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Eric Jones – Local Member 

 

41C103N – Full application for the erection of one wind turbine with a maximum hub height of 
up to 44m, rotor diameter of up to 33m and a maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 62m, 
the construction of an access track together with the erection of an equipment housing 
cabinet on land at Ty Gwyn, Penmynydd 

The Planning and Orders Committee at its meeting held on 7 November, 2012 resolved to visit the 
site on the recommendation of the Officers. 

The Team Leader reported that this was an application for one wind turbine of up to tip height of 62m,  
hub height of 44m and rotor diameter of up to 33m which would generate 330kw output. 

She showed the Members the location of the proposal which is down a farm track and drew the 
Members’ attention to the nearest dwellings and tourist developments which are over 500m distance. 

Members viewed the proposed site from various locations and photo montages of the proposal was 
circulated to the Members of the Committee.  The Committee viewed St. Gredifael Church, 
Penmynydd which is a Listed Building; entrance to Rhyd y Delyn Bach; entrance joining the A5025.  
Reference was made to the location of Pentraeth Forest which is classed as an AONB. Members left 
the area along the A5025 and were able to view the area from this location. 

 

 

COUNCILLOR J. ARWEL ROBERTS 
CHAIR 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (DFJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Site Visit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

It is considered that due to the nature and scale of the development that it would be beneficial for the 

members to view the site and its context prior to making any determination. 

 

 1. Recommendation  

 

Site Visit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



 

Page 7



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (NJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Site Visit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is made for a wind turbine with a maximum hub height of up to 36.5m, rotor diameter of up to 

30m and a maximum hub height of up to 46.1m, together with associated development. 

 

It is considered that it would be of benefit to the members to view the site and its context prior to making any 

determination.  

 

 1. Recommendation  

 

Site visit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

Page 9



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (DPJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Site Visit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The Local Member has requested a site visit and it is considered necessary for members to view the site and 

its context before considering the planning application in January. 

 

 1. Recommendation  

 

Site Visit 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

Page 11



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (NJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Defer 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is made for a wind turbine with a maximum hub height of up to 44m, rotor diameter of up to 

33m and a maximum upright vertical tip height of up to 62m, together with associated developments. 

 

A site visit was held on 21
st
 November 2012. 

 

New information with a view to addressing an objection to the application by the Countryside Council for 

Wales has just been received.  In order to allow consultees an opportunity to review that information it is 

recommended that the application is deferred.  It is anticipated that a full report and recommendation will 

follow in the January Committee. 

 

 1. Recommendation  

 

Defer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (DPJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Approve 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 
The application is reported to the committee as it has been decided that delegated powers will not be used 

in connection with wind turbine developments. 

 

A site visit was convened in August  2012. 

 

At the time of writing the applicants have submitted an appeal against non-determination but this is yet to 

be validated. Should the appeal be validated prior to the consideration of the application by the planning 

committee the local planning authority is not able to determine the planning application as per the 

recommendation of the report. In such circumstances members will only be able to make a resolution on 

the local planning authority’s position in the appeal. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 
The application site comprises an agricultural field, there is a public footpath in the adjacent fields to the 
east. 
 
The application was originally made for a single turbine of 100 metres in height to the tip but the height 
was reduced as a result of objections from the MOD. 
 
The application is now made for a single wind turbine with a maximum height to the tip of the blade of 72 
meter, maximum height to hub of 44 metres and a maximum rotor diameter of 56 meters. The maximum 
rated power of the turbine being applied for is 500 Kw. 
 
The proposal also includes ancillary structures including a control building, access roads/hard standings 
and transformer buildings. 
 
The planning application is supported by the following: 

 
• Landscape and Visual 
• Assessment including Photomontages. 
• Individual Property Assessment. 
• Planning Support Statement. 
• Ecological Assessment. 
• Swept Path Analysis for delivery of wind turbines to the site. 

 
 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

· Principle of the development 

· Landscape and Visual Impact 

· Residential Amenity. 

· Setting of the Listed Building 
  

 3. Main Policies  

 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
C7 Renewable Energy 

Page 14



D1 AONB 
D3 Landscape Conservation Area 
D22 Setting Listed Building 
 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

1 (General) 

30 Landscape 

31 Landscape 

41 Conservation of Buildings 

45 Renewable Energy 

 

Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan 

GP1 Development Control Guidance 

EP 18 Renewable Energy 

EN1 Landscape Character 

EN2 Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

EN13 Setting of Listed Buildings 

 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 (February 2012) 

 

Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010). 

 

Technical Advice Note 8 Renewables (2005) 

 

Practice Guidance: Planning for Renewable and Low Carbon Energy - A Toolkit for Planners’, 

Welsh Assembly Government (2010) 

 

Practice Guidance Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Energy (February 2011) 

 

Circular 61/96 'Planning and the Historic Environment: Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas' 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Wind Energy Developments (January 1994). 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member No observations received. 

Community Council Requested that the application is refused for the following reasons: 

 

- Insufficient evidence as regards the effects on people health, especially children. 
- There are 3 houses within 560 metres of the turbines. 
- Set a precedent for further wind turbines of this height in the area. 
- No information as regards the sound levels from the turbines. 
- Turbines can’t be approved without the new guidelines that are being prepared  

 

Highways The Traffic Management Plan “TMP” is satisfactory & an informative as regard a survey of the 

public highway prior to commencement of the development. It was also indicated that part of the road 

improvements shown on the submitted details maybe outside the highway boundary and on private land. 

An amended “Swept Path Analysis Drawing” was subsequently submitted and this is currently being 

considered again by the Highways Section. 

 

Public Right of Way No effect on the adjacent public footpath. 

 

Drainage In formatives recommended. 

Page 15



Environmental Services Conditional permission. 

 

Environmental Advisor is content that the turbine is sited such that the blade tips are more than 50 

metres from both the northern and eastern hedgerows in the field. Some issues were raised by the 

council’s Ecological Adviser in relation to restoration of features affected by highway improvements to 

facilitate construction of the development. 

 

Built Environment No objections on landscape grounds or heritage/listed building grounds, but need a 

photomontage of the development in relation to a grade II church at St Peirio, Rhosbeirio. 

 

Arqiva No objections on the grounds of the effect on television reception. 

 

Welsh Water No comments. 

 

Environment Agency Low environmental risk. 

 

Countryside Council for Wales  

 

Protected Species 

 

The application will not affect, either directly or indirectly, the features, functionality or integrity of any 

statutory protected sites of ecological, geological or geomorphologic interest. 

 

It is considered that the protected species survey has been completed to a satisfactory standard for the 

purposes of informing the decision making process. CCW advise that the proposals will not be detrimental 

to the maintenance of the favourable conservation status of any statutory protected species populations 

present in their natural range. As with all wind energy developments, we advise that the turbine is sited 

such that a 50m buffer is maintained around any linear features such as woodland, river corridors, large 

hedgerows or agricultural dwellings, into which no part of the turbine intrudes. This is due to such areas 

being utilised by bats for foraging, commuting or roosting purposes, and follows 

current guidance (Natural England: Technical Information Note 059). 

 

Landscape 

 

The application site is not located within or immediately adjacent to the boundaries of any statutory 

protected landscapes, nor areas that are classified as having outstanding qualities on LANDMAP. In 

addition, we consider that the turbine, in view of its location, will not significantly add to the cumulative 

visual impact when considered in combination with other 

wind energy development in the vicinity. Consequently, we do not believe the proposals will have 

significant adverse impacts on the special qualities or integrity of any statutory protected landscapes. We 

do however note that the 44m hub height of this particular turbine will be larger than those of the existing 

wind turbines in the surrounding area i.e. Rhyd-y-Groes, Trysglwyn and Llyn Alaw wind farm  evelopments, 

which range from 25m to 37m hub heights. This may result in this turbine becoming a dominant landmark 

feature in the area. We therefore advise that this is taken into consideration as part of your deliberation 

process. 

 

To conclude, CCW does not object to the proposals. 

 

In relation to the Traffic Management Plan “TMP” CCW have indicated that they do not wish to comment 

on the proposals. They have indicated that to comply with your authority's duty under section 40 of the 

NERC Act, to have regard to conserving biodiversity, your decision should take account of possible 

adverse effects on such interests. 

Page 16



Ministry of Defence Conditional permission. 

 

Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service Conditional permission. 

 

Response to Publicity 

 

Forty letters received objecting to the planning application on the following grounds: 

 

· Proposal would have a substantial effect on the amenity of nearby properties. 

· A buffer zone of 720 metres is required as per the Draft Council SPG. 

· Proposal would have a visually overwhelming impact on the public footpath. 

· Proposal would dominate the view of the Church which is a grade II listed building & have a 
substantial adverse impact on the setting. 

· Prominent in close range views. 

· Precedent. 

· Lanes unsuitable for abnormal load. 

· Mistakes & omissions in LVIA. 

· More information requested on how the turbine will be connected to the national grid. 

· Scale of turbine. 

· Noise. 

· Detrimental effect on the landscape. 

· Shadow flicker. 

· No assessment on the impact of tourism. 

· No assessment of the impact on the environment. 

· Impact on wildlife/migrating birds. 

· Landscape impact. 

· Impact on tourism. 

· Low frequency noise. 

· Turbine is of industrial scale for profit. 

· Negative visual impact on the countryside. 

· There is currently the Wind Turbine (Minimum Distance from Residential Premises) Bill being 
debated in Parliament which proposes statutory distance limits on turbines. 

· Interference with the hydrological process. 

· Cumulative impact. 

· 240 letters received supporting the planning application on the following grounds: 

· Wind turbine will meet the energy demands of 280 homes, offsetting the release of over 14,000 
tonnes of C02 over its 25 year lifespan. 

· Tackle global warming contributes to WAG energy targets. 

· Reduce reliance on fossil fuels. 

· Visual impact should be put in context of widespread environmental damage of climate change. 

· Any noise will be within accepted planning guidelines. 

· Any transport access issues during construction will be short term to facilitate long term benefits. 

· Improvements to the road network will benefit the area. 

· Turbine supports Anglesey’s Local Agenda 21 theme Working together on our Island to safeguard 
the world of tomorrow”. 

· Development is in accordance with Planning Policy. 

· The turbine will have no impact on tourism nor affect residential amenity. 

· Contribute to farm diversification. 

· Contribute to enhanced management of farm activities supporting sustainable land management. 

· Community Benefit payment of £100,000 over the projects life will be a major support to the local 
community. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 
20C277A/SCR Screening opinion, No EIA required 14.12.11. 
 

Page 17



 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 
Principle of development 
 
Policy C7 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan states:  
 
“There will be a presumption in favour of renewable energy projects provided that the impacts upon the 
locality are acceptable to the local planning authority. Where applicable, the proposals should be 
supported by an environmental assessment.” 
 
Policy 45 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan states:  
 
“Renewable energy projects will be permitted where it can be clearly demonstrated that there will not be 
any unacceptable impact on i. Landscape character, ii. Sites of international, national or local importance 
for nature conservation, iii. species which are of nature conservation importance iv. the standard of 
amenity enjoyed by the resident and tourist population and vi. Essential public services and 
communications. 
 
Policy 8B- Energy Developments of the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan states: 
“Applications for the development of renewable and non-renewable energy resources will be permitted 
where it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable adverse impact upon the environment. 
Preference will be given to the development of clean and renewable energy sources, but proposals for 
non-renewable energy projects will be permitted if they encourage the maximum use of energy efficiency 
within their design. 
 
Since the last Planning Committee Planning Policy Wales was updated to Edition 5 in November. The 
most significant change was the clarification and strengthening of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. In terms of section 12.8 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy of the revised Planning Policy 
Wales there are no significant changes. 
 
Section 12.8.1 (Renewable and Low Carbon Energy) of Planning Policy Wales (5th Edition November 

2012 ) sets out targets and gives strong support for renewable energy projects in line with the Welsh 

Assembly Government’s Energy Policy Statement (2010). 

 

Planning Policy Wales at paragraph 12.8.15 states the impacts from renewable energy developments will 

also vary depending on their location and scale and require different policy and development management 

considerations. At 500KW the turbine subject to this report is a categorised as “Sub Local Authority” in 

Planning Policy Wales which includes developments of between 50KW & 5MW according to figure 12.3.  

Practice Guidance – Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Carbon Energy states there are no rigid 

categories to describe the scale of individual wind turbines but that installations tend to fall within 4 main 

bandwidths. The turbine subject to this report would fall within the “Medium” category with a typical rating 

of 500Kw, though the height is slightly larger to the blade tip than a typical installation of 65 meters. As a 

“Sub Local Authority” or a “Medium” installation the scale of the turbine is acceptable in principle in policy 

terms in this location but there are also detailed considerations within the policy considerations as detailed 

below. 

 

Section12.10.1 reproduced below highlights matters that should be taken into account in dealing with 

renewable and low carbon energy development and associated infrastructure by the local planning 

authority. This covers the positive aspects such as contribution to meeting national, UK and European 

targets and wider environmental, social and economic benefits. It also highlights the need to consider 

impact on the natural heritage, the coast and the historic environment and the need to minimise impacts on 

local communities. Other matters such as mitigation and infrastructure matters i.e. grid connection and 

transportation network are also highlighted within this section as follows: 

12.10.1 In determining applications for renewable and low carbon energy development and associated 

infrastructure local planning authorities should take into account:  

- the contribution a proposal will play in meeting identified national, UK and European targets and 

Page 18



potential for renewable energy, including the contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions;  

- the wider environmental, social and economic benefits and opportunities from renewable and low 

carbon energy development;  

- the impact on the natural heritage (see 5.5), the Coast (see 5.6) and the Historic Environment (see 

6.5);  

- the need to minimise impacts on local communities to safeguard quality of life for existing and 

future generations;  

- ways to avoid, mitigate or compensate identified adverse impacts;  

- the impacts of climate change on the location, design, build and operation of renewable and low 

carbon energy development. In doing so consider whether measures to adapt to climate change 

impacts give rise to additional impacts (see 4.5);  

- grid connection issues where renewable (electricity) energy developments are proposed; and  
- the capacity of and effects on the transportation network relating to the construction and operation 

of the proposal. 
 
Technical Advice Note 8 Renewables (2005) (paragraph 14) states the Assembly Government has a target 
of 4TWh of electricity per annum to be produced by renewable energy by 2010 and 7TWh by 2020. In 
order to meet these targets the Assembly Government has concluded that 800MW of additional installed 
capacity is required from onshore wind sources. 
 
Paragraph 2.12 of TAN 8 states the Assembly Government expects local planning authorities to 
encourage, via their development plan policies and when considering individual planning applications, 
smaller community based wind farm schemes (generally less than 5 MW).The paragraph explains that 
local planning authorities could define “community based”. There are no policy definitions which can 
currently be used and weighted in this regard. The applicants have confirmed in writing that they are willing 
to donate £5000 per annum to Llanbadrig Community Council towards sustainable community projects and 
are content for this to be subject to a legal agreement completed as part of any planning permission 
granted. Having regard to advice in paragraph 2.16 and Annex B of TAN this offer would not meet be 
justified as mitigation of development impacts through the planning process and is not necessary for the 
development to proceed. It is a matter for the developer if they wish to offer the benefits unilaterally or 
directly with any third parties but this is not a matter which has been weighted in the decision making 
process. 
 
Section 2 of Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities contains the following 

guidance: 

“2.1.1 The planning system has a key role to play in supporting the delivery of sustainable rural 

communities. It can help to ensure that appropriate development takes place in the right place at the right 

time by making sufficient land available to provide homes and employment opportunities for local people, 

helping to sustain rural services. Simultaneously, the planning system must respond to the challenges 

posed by climate change, for example by accommodating the need for renewable energy generation. It 

must also protect and enhance the natural and historic environment and safeguard the countryside and 

open spaces. The overall goal for the planning system is to support living and working rural communities in 

order that they are economically, socially and environmentally sustainable. Planning authorities should 

seek to strengthen rural communities by helping to ensure that existing residents can work and access 

services locally using low carbon travel and obtain a higher proportion of their energy needs from local 

renewable sources.” 
In relation to farm diversification Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 

contains the following guidance: 

3.7.2 Many economic activities can be sustainably located on farms. Small on-farm operations such as 

food and timber processing and food packing, together with services (e.g. offices, workshop facilities, 

equipment hire and maintenance), sports and recreation services, and the production of non-food crops 

and renewable energy, are likely to be appropriate uses. 
The council’s adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance: ‘Wind Energy Development’ (1994) is a material 
consideration in determining wind turbine applications. However, due to the age of the document, it is in 
the process of being replaced by an updated version called ‘Onshore Wind Energy’, which is currently at 
the 2nd post consultation stage and can only be attributed little weight. 
 

Page 19



It is evident that the policies listed above provide a presumption in favour of renewable energy 
developments in meeting the identified targets for low carbon energy generation. The scale of the 
development classified as “Sub Local Authority” or “Medium” is acceptable in principle in this location 
though as described in the introduction of this report the turbine would have height to the tip of the blade of 
72 meters and a maximum rotor diameter of 56 meters. Weight can also be attributed to the benefits to the 
rural economy. As detailed in the policies listed there are also other environmental and community 
considerations which need to be assessed, and these are considered below. 
 
Landscape and Visual Impact 

 

The proposal would be located within an area designated as a Special Landscape Area and also within 

approximately 1.2km of the AONB to the north. The site is located within an open farmed landscape of 

large field enclosures with maintained hedgerows, inland of the Coastal Landscape. The site is located in a 

landscape influenced by existing windfarm at Rhyd-y-Groes.  

 

The application is supported by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) which includes 

photomontages, wireframes and maps which show the Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV) and Cumulative 

ZTV (CZTV). 

 

The proposed turbine is described in the submitted LVIA as introducing a landmark element at distances 

extending to approximately 500metres but that it could be mistaken as part of the Rhyd y Groes windfarm 

from views outside of this distance. The landscape impact at distances of up to approximately 500m is 

described as being Substantial adverse. Beyond this distance and up to 2km the landscape impact would 

reduce significantly but the turbine would still exert significant effects upon landscape character up to 2km. 

The ZTV show where there are theoretical views of the proposed turbine or part thereof (shown up to 

10km radius on the ZTV) particularly within a 5km radius of the site. 

 

The submitted LVIA states that visual impact on the closest assessed receptor within the AONB is slight – 

moderate adverse, with an assessed moderate adverse impact on another viewpoint. Officers consider 

that the proposal would represent an adverse cumulative visual and landscape impact on the AONB and 

the Landscape Character Area greater than that assessed in the submitted LVIA. However the effects on 

the AONB would not be substantial due to the visual and landscape significance of existing and consented 

turbines, and it would not represent significant cumulative landscape impact or an unacceptable adverse 

effect on landscape character. 

 

Residential Amenity 

 

The application is accompanied by a detailed assessment of the impacts on the residential amenities of 

surrounding properties. 

 

Policy C7 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan supports renewable energy developments if the impact on the 

locality is acceptable. Policy 45 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan requires that renewable energy development 

does not have an unacceptable impact on “the standard of amenity enjoyed by the resident and tourist 

population”. Policy EP18 of the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan includes the same criterion 

but requires it not to have a significant adverse impact.Policies 1 and GP1 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan and 

the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan are also material in as regard considering residential 

amenity. 

 

Paragraph 12.8.14 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5) (November 2012) states that:  

 

“…developers will need to be sensitive to local circumstances, including siting in relation to local landform, 

proximity to dwellings and other planning considerations…” 

 

Page 20



Annex D of TAN 8 lists factors which should typically be reviewed to identify “technically feasible areas” for 

the development of onshore wind energy schemes. At paragraph 3.4 is states “500M is currently 

considered a typical separation distance between a wind turbine and residential property to avoid 

unacceptable noise impacts, however when applied in a rigid manner it can lead to conservative results 

and so some flexibility is again advised” 

 

The council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance Wind Energy Development (1994) “SPG” states that the 

council will give favourable consideration to renewable energy projects in those cases where it can be 

clearly demonstrated that there would be no adverse impacts on the listed considerations which include 

“the standard of amenity enjoyed by residents and the tourist populations”. Under 7.3 “Public Safety, 

Shadow Flicker Disturbances, Visual Intrusion and Impact on Highway Safety” the “SPG” contains a 

recommended standard that no turbine shall be sited nearer than 400 metres from the nearest dwelling 

house, with a possible exception of dwellings occupied by the owners of land where it is proposed to locate 

turbines. 

 

As indicated previously in the report little weight can be attributed to the draft SPG which is currently being 

prepared by the council. 

 

Officers have also considered decisions made by Planning Inspectors in relation to residential visual 

amenity. Such an analysis indicates that a common threshold criterion applied by Inspectors for assessing 

visual residential amenity is where the change in the view would affect the fundamental living conditions. 

Various terms are used to describe this threshold, e.g. ‘overbearing’, ‘overwhelming’, ‘overpowering’ or 

‘oppressive’. 

 

The application is accompanied by a detailed assessment of the impacts on the residential amenities of 

surrounding properties including wireframes, with views of the turbine from the proposed dwelling. There 

are two residential properties at “Shop y Goeden” and “Tyn y Gors” where the impact on visual amenity 

has been identified as substantial by the applicant’s. These properties are around 431 and 455 metres 

from the proposed turbine. 

 

Officers have assessed both properties in detail and agree with the applicant’s submission that the impact 

on the visual amenities of both properties will be substantial. The applicants were requested to comment 

and suggest mitigation if they deemed it appropriate but no response has been received. Given the size of 

the turbine, distances and orientation of these properties officers on balance decided that the turbine would 

not be “overbearing” or “overwhelming”. This judgement was based on a detailed analysis thought it is 

accepted that the degree of impact depends on an individual’s perception.  

 

Annex C of Planning Policy Wales provides advice on Shadow Flicker and Reflected light. Shadow flicker 

is only found to occur within properties up to 10 rotor diameters 

of a turbine and within 130 degrees either side of north at these latitudes in the UK. There are residential 

properties within this area. The applicants have submitted a shadow flicker analysis indicating the degree 

of shadow flicker which would affect identified properties. The applicant’s state that two properties in a 

predicted worst case scenario would experience shadow flicker for about 12 and a half hours a year. The 

applicants have indicated that proposals will be well within acceptable limits but if the local planning 

authority consider that there is an impact  they should set out its reasoning for a condition, then the 

applicant would be agreeable to considering a suggested suitable condition. 

 

There are no guidelines for the assessment of shadow flicker or set limits for duration in the United 

Kingdom. Inspector’s appeal decisions indicate that it is possible to provide a mitigation strategy to prevent 

harm from shadow flicker and that a condition could be imposed that would require a scheme including 

remedial measures should they be necessary. The applicants have been requested to confirm the type of 

mitigation measures which could be incorporated in such a scheme but no response has been received. 

Page 21



On balance no objections are raised on this basis but mitigation is  considered necessary via a planning 

condition.  

 

Annex C goes on to state turbines can also cause flashes of reflected light, which can be visible for some 

distances. The guidance states that reflected light can be mitigated by the choice of blade colour and a 

condition has been recommended on the colour to mitigate impacts to mitigate the impacts. 

 

Many of the objections received refer to health & 

noise concerns. The council’s Environmental 

Services Section has confirmed that they are 

content to grant approval subject to the conditions recommended in respect of noise.  

 

Setting of the listed Building 

 

There is a listed building comprising a church as St Peirio, Rhosbeirio which is 0.750 KM from the 

proposed turbine. This Medieval rural church is included in the statutory register of LB's as being grade II. 

From the Conservation Officer’s perspective the setting of this listed building will be of a significant impact 

and warranted a request for a photomontage to be taken from the church in order to fully assess the 

impact.  

 

Section 66(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act, 1990) 

states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed 

building or its setting the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving 

the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. The 

local planning authority requested a photomontage of the proposed turbine in relation to this listed building 

but the applicants have not submitted this as part of the planning application. Whilst the provision of the 

photomontage would have facilitated a full assessment of the impact and possibly mitigation, on balance it 

is not matter on which objection is raised. 

 

Other Material Considerations 

 

It is understood that a connection to the grid will be subject of a separate application by the statutory 

undertaker. The applicants have confirmed that investigation work with the statutory undertaker are on-

going and initial feedback highlights that a connection point within reasonable distance of the site should 

be available. 

 

The Ministry of Defence have no objections to the development subject to conditions. 

 

The effects of the development on tourism is a material consideration. The Isle of Anglesey Council 

commissioned research on “The Impact of Wind Turbines on Tourism” which has been weighted in making 

the recommendation below. 

 

In terms of Health and Safety the proposals are not situated in proximity to any roads or buildings having 

regard to advice in Annex C, paragraphs 2.19 and 2.20 of “TAN 8”. 

 

The council’s Highways Section are satisfied with the proposal and the applicants have submitted a “Route 

Assessment Report and Traffic Management Plan”.  

 

In addition the applicant’s have provided a “Swept Path Analysis Drawings” indicating that it is possible to 

deliver turbine components to the application site and provided details where works to the highway 

network are required. Improvements will be required to the junctions and sections of the unclassified road 

leading from the A5025 to the application site. A condition has been recommended requiring that these 

Page 22



works are completed prior to the construction of the development subject to this report. 

 

The Countryside Council for Wales are satisfied with the ecological information submitted with the 

application in so far as it relates to the turbines and their siting. Further ecological assessments were 

submitted in respect of the highway improvements required to provide access to vehicles in the 

construction process of the development. Some issues were raised by the council’s Ecological Adviser 

which are on balance matters which can be dealt with via a restoration condition, which would require 

restoration/re-planting of any hedges/”clawdds” removed to facilitate construction access. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The policies listed above provide a presumption in favor of renewable energy developments subject to the 

considerations listed. 

 

Whilst officers consider that the development would have greater cumulative visual and landscape impact 

on the AONB than that indicated in the submitted LVIA. However the effects on the AONB would not be 

substantial due to the visual and landscape significance of existing and consented turbines. 

 

There are two residential properties where the applicant’s submission indicates that the impact on the 

visual amenities of both properties will be substantial. Given the size of the turbine, distances and 

orientation of these properties officers on balance decided that the turbine would not be “overbearing” or 

“overwhelming”, such that planning permission ought to be refused. 

 

There is a listed building comprising a church as St Peirio, Rhosbeirio which is 0.750 KM from the 

proposed turbine. From the Conservation Officer’s perspective the setting of this listed building will be of a 

significant impact and a photomontage was requested but not submitted with the application. The provision 

of the photomontage would have facilitated a full assessment of the impact and possibly mitigation, but on 

balance it is not a matter on which objection is raised. 

 

 8. Recommendation  

 

That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 

(01) The development hereby approved shall commence not later than five years from the date of 

this approval. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The turbine hereby approved shall be of a 3 bladed configuration and shall not exceed: 

 

72 metres maximum tip height 

*(*to the upright 

vertical tip of an 

attached blade) 

44 metres maximum hub 

height 

56 metres maximum rotor 

diameter 

500 kw maximum rated 

power 

 

(03) The turbine blade shall rotate in the same direction as the turbines on the “Rhyd y Groes Wind 

Page 23



Farm” (or any subsequently re-powered, re-configured or changed wind farm in any respect). 

 

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development 

 

(04) No development shall take place until details of the external finish of the turbine hereby 

permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development 

 

(05) Within 12 months of the wind turbine hereby permitted ceasing to be used for the generation 

of electricity, it shall be permanently removed from the land and the site restored in accordance 

with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to 

these works being carried out. 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance upon cessation of the development. 

 

(06) All cabling in connection with the development hereby approved shall be installed 

underground. 

 

Reason: In the interests of amenity. 

 

(07) The development shall not commence until the following has been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

1) The date construction starts and ends. 

2) The maximum extension height of any construction equipment. 

3) The latitude and longitude of the turbine. 

 

The development shall thereafter be undertaken strictly in accord with the details approved under 

the provisions of this condition.  

 

Reason: To ensure that military aircraft avoid the area and avoid the danger of collision. 

 

(08) No development shall take place until the details of the location; construction and site/storage 

compounds have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development 

 

(09) No other part of the development shall commence, until the highway improvement works 

specified in the “Route Assessment Report and Traffic Management Plan” (August 2008) as 

amended by the Swept Path Access Route Details Sheet 2 (Reference 11087-03-011-0- ), have been 

implemented and completed, unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: To minimise danger and inconvenience to highway users. 

 

(10) No part of the development shall display any name, logo, sign or advertisement or means of 

illumination (save for that required for aviation safety purposes). 

 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the area. 

 

Page 24



(11) No development shall commence until a written baseline domestic television and radio 

reception study in the area has been undertaken by a qualified television and domestic radio 

engineer and submitted to the local planning authority. A written mitigation scheme ('the mitigation 

scheme') setting out the details of work necessary to mitigate any adverse effects to domestic 

television and radio signals in the area caused by the development shall also be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority before development begins. The mitigation 

scheme shall include provision for investigating and dealing with any claim by any person for 

domestic loss or interference at their household within 12 months of 'the commissioning' of the 

wind farm, and any mitigation works must be carried out in accordance with the approved 

mitigation scheme. 

  

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the area. 

 

(12) Prior to the commencements of the development hereby approved, a written scheme to 

alleviate the incidence of shadow flicker ('the alleviation scheme') at any affected residential 

property shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved alleviation scheme. 

 

Reason: To preserve the amenities of the occupants of the adjacent dwelling. 

 

(13) Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of illumination of the turbines ('the 

illumination scheme') identified on the planning application plans by 200 candela lighting on the 

top of the nacelles of the said turbines shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority and any illumination on or of the turbines shall only be undertaken in strict 

accordance with the details in the approved illumination scheme. 

 

Reason: To ensure that military aircraft avoid the area to prevent collision. 

 

(14) (1) The level of noise emission from the development hereby approved shall be measured in 

accordance with and shall not exceed the levels set out in the noise emission scheme ('the noise 

monitoring scheme') as set out in this condition (14)below.   

  

(14) (2) The level of noise emission resulting from the wind farm shall be assessed using the 

procedures described in 'The Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind Farms, ETSU-R_97' 

published by ETSU for the Department of Trade and Industry, specifically the Section entitled 

'Supplementary Guidance Notes to the Planning Obligation'.   

 

(14) (3) The level of noise emission from the the wind turbine generator at Tai Hen shall not 

exceed:-  

 

(a) As to the dwelling listed in Table 1 of Schedule 1 the levels set for that property in that table (at 

the wind speeds indicated within the Table).  

 

(b) As to all other dwellings lawfully exisiting at the time of the planning consent and not 

associated with the development the levels set in Table 2 of Schedule 1(at the wind speeds 

indicated within the Table).  

 

(14) (4) The level of noise emission referred to in paragraph (14) (3) above shall be measured using 

an LA90 index over a minimum of 20 periods each of 10 minutes duration, using a sound level 

meter of at least Class 1 quality (Incorporating best current practice) incorporating a ½ inch 

diameter microphone in free field conditions 1.2 metres above ground level and at least 3.5 metres 

from any wall, hedge or reflective surface (using a fast time weighted response).  

Page 25



(14) (5) If the level of noise emission measured in accordance with paragraph (14)(4) exceeds the 

relevant levels referred to or specified in paragraph (14)(3) above or Schedule 1 attached, then the 

contribution of background noise to the level of noise emission shall be measured.  

  

(a)  Such background noise levels shall be measured using an LA90 index over a minimum of 6 

periods each of 10 minutes duration in accordance with the requirements of paragraph (14)(4).  

 

(b) Such measurements shall be made during a period of further measurements of noise from the 

wind turbine generator at Tai Hen (made in accordance with the requirements of paragraph (14)(4).   

  

(c) A correction using best current   

practice shall be applied to the measured noise level to determine the contribution of background 

noise to the overall levels measured when the wind turbines are operating.  

  

(14) (6) The measurements made in accordance with paragraphs (14)(4) & (14)(5) shall be correlated 

with wind speeds measured at 10 metres over the periods referred to in paragraph (14)(4) & (14)(5). 

The LA90 noise level shall be derived using a best fit curve of the measured noise levels for data 

points corresponding to 10 metre wind speeds between 0 & 12 metres per second.  

  

(14) (7) Compliance with paragraph (14)(3)(a) and (14)(3)(b) using the methods defined in paragraph 

(14)(4) to (14)(6)  shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority  and at 

the expense of the Developer within 3 months following the first generation of electricity or at any 

time at the written request of the local planning authority and, thereafter, at least once every 20 

calendar months. Compliance with the noise monitoring scheme shall be demonstrated to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority by the submission to it of a written report. The 

local planning authority may require information from the applicant in writing in respect of any of 

the matters falling within the ambit of the noise monitoring scheme. The local planning authority 

may also request that any breaches of or evidenced by the noise monitoring scheme are 

addressed within a set timetable which timetable shall have been submitted to and agreed in 

writing by the local planning authority before the development commences and written 

confirmation of having implemented such proposals to address any breaches shall be sent to the 

local planning authority within a set timescale such timescale also to be submitted to and agreed 

in writing by the local planning authority before the development commences. The requirements of 

the noise monitoring  scheme shall apply throughout the life of the development.   

  

(14) (8) Tonal noise shall be measured by the operator of the wind farm at its expense at the 

reasonable request of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the procedures described in 

'The Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind Farms, ETSU-R-97' published by ETSU for the 

Department of Trade and Industry.  

  

(14) (9) If, at any dwelling lawfully existing at the time of the Planning Consent, the tonal noise from 

the wind turbine at Tai Hen  exceeds the threshold of Audibility:-  

  

(i) by more than 2.0dB but less than 6.5dB a penalty of (5/6.5) x  Audibility)dB shall be added to the 

noise level derived for that property in accordance with the ETSU-R-97 tonal assessment 

procedure;  

(ii) by more than 6.5dB a penalty of  

5dB shall be added to the noise level derived for that property in accordance with the ETSU_R-97 

tonal assessment procedure.  

  

(14) (10) The Developer shall supply wind speed and direction data to the Local Planning Authority 

on its request to enable the Council to check compliance by the Developer with the provisions of 

Page 26



paragraphs (14)(1) to (14)(9) above.   

  

(14) (11) Interpretation of some of the terms used within this condition are outlined in Schedule 2 

attached.  

 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the occupants of neighbouring dwellings. 

 

(15) No development shall take place within the site until the implementation of a programme of 

archaeological works has been secured in accordance with a written scheme of investigation 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Rheswm : I gofnodi a gwarchod unrhyw dystiolaeth archeolegol a all fod yn bresennol ar y safle. 

 

(16) Prior to the commencement of 

development, a Construction Method Statement ('CMS') describing the works to be undertaken and 

pollution prevention measures to be implemented during the construction phase, shall be 

submitted in writing to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development 

shall be implemented in accordance with the approved CMS. 

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment. 

 

(17) No construction work shall be undertaken outside the hours of 0730 - 1800 hours on weekdays 

(Monday – Friday) and 0730 – 1200 hours on Saturdays and at no time on bank holidays and 

Sundays. 

 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the occupants of neighbouring dwellings. 
 

(18) No development shall commence until a landscaping & reinstatement scheme for the 

application site and areas of land associated with the approved development, including highway 

works has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority: the approved scheme 

shall be carried out in the first planting season after the completion of the construction works or its 

bringing into operation, whichever is sooner. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years 

of the implementation of the approved scheme, are removed, become seriously damaged or 

diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and same 

species, unless the local planning authority gives written consent to any variation. 

 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the area. 

 

Informatives 

 

1. The applicant is advised to contact Colin Edwards (Chief Engineer) 01248 752350 to discuss the 
requirements of a condition survey of the highway network before commencement of any 
development on the site. The survey will be useful for all parties to provide a record of the 
condition of the public highway prior to the completion of the development. 

2. The developer is advised to contact the council’s Highway Section to agree a traffic management 
scheme including their agreement to any compound location, hours and days of operation and 
operation of any construction vehicles and any wheel washing facilities. 

3. The turbine should be installed by a suitably qualified person, in accordance with the 
manufacturer's instructions and the site survey and should be serviced in accordance with the 
manufacturer's recommendations.  

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Page 27



FF11 (Traffic)  
D32 Landscaping Schemes 
 
Ynys Mon Local Plan  
32  (Landscape) 
35 (Nature Conservation) 
 
Stopped Anglesey Unitary Development Plan 
TR3 (Highway Design) 
EN4 (Biodiversity) 
EN14 (Tree Preservation Orders & Hedgerows) 
EN16 (Landscape Features of Major Importance for Flora & Fauna) 
 
Technical Advice Note 5 Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 
 

Technical Advice Note 11 Noise (1997) 

 

Welsh Government Circular letter 01.04.09 Transportation Issues Arising From Wind Farms 

 

SCHEDULE 1. 

Table 1: Dwellings Associated with Development. 

Tai Hen (238258, 391699) 

 

Wind 

Speed at 

10m height 

(m/s). 

Below 

3 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

Noise Limit  

LA90 dB 

43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 44 

 

Table 2: Dwellings not Associated with Development. 

 

Wind 

Speed at 

10m height 

(m/s). 

Below 

3 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

Noise Limit  

LA90 dB 

35 

 

35 

35 35 35 36 38 39 41 42 44 

 

Page 28



SCHEDULE 2 

“Audibility” means the audibility of the Tonal Noise as defined in (and to be measured in accordance 

with) the recommended method in “The Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind Farms, ETSU-R-

97” published by ETSU for the Department of Trade and Industry, specifically paragraph 2.1 of the 

Section titled “Supplementary Guidance Notes to the Planning Obligation”. 

“Background Noise Level” means the ambient noise level present within the environment in the 

absence of noise generated by the Development. 

“Best fit curve” means a best fit linear regression curve expressing the noise level as a function of 

wind speed derived from measured noise levels for data points extracted in accordance with the 

recommendations of Section 1.2 of the Section titled “Supplementary Guidance Notes to the 

Planning Obligation” in ETSU-R-97. 

“dB(A) LA90, 10min” means the dB(A) level exceeded 90% of the time and measured over a period 

of 10 minutes. 

“ETSU-R-97”  means “The Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind Farms, ETSU-R-97” published 

by ETSU for the Department of Trade and Industry (Final Report September 1996). 

“Free-field Conditions” means an environment in which there are no reflective surfaces (except the 

ground) affecting the measurements within the frequency range being measured. 

“Reasonable Request” means following a complaint to the Council relating to noise emissions from 

the Wind Farm. 

“Tonal Noise” means noise containing a discrete frequency component. 

“10 metre wind speed” means (unless the context otherwise demands) wind speeds measured at a 

height of 10 metres above ground level. 

“Wind Turbines” means the wind turbine generators proposed to be erected as part of the 

development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



 

Page 30



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (DPJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Refuse 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 
The application is reported to the committee as it has been decided that delegated powers will not be used 

in connection with wind turbine developments. 

 

A site visit was convened in August  2012. 

 

At the time of writing the applicants have submitted an appeal against non-determination but this is yet to 

be validated. Should the appeal be validated prior to the consideration of the application by the planning 

committee the local planning authority is not able to determine the planning application as per the 

recommendation of the report. In such circumstances members will only be able to make a resolution on 

the local planning authority’s position in the appeal. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 
The application site comprises an agricultural field, there are existing National Grid pylons in the vicinity. 
 
The application is made for a single wind turbine with a maximum height to the tip of the blade of 72 meter, 
maximum height to hub of 44 metres and a maximum rotor diameter of 56 meters. The maximum rated 
power of the turbine being applied for is 500 Kw. 
 
The proposal also includes ancillary structures including a control building, access roads/hard standings 
and transformer buildings. 
 
The planning application is supported by the following: 

 

· Landscape and Visual 

· Assessment including Photomontages. 

· Individual Property Assessment. 

· Planning Support Statement. 

· Ecological Assessment. 

· Swept Path Analysis for delivery of wind turbines to the site. 
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

· Principle of the development 

· Landscape and Visual Impact 

· Residential Amenity. 
 

 3. Main Policies  

 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
C7 Renewable Energy 
D1 AONB 
D3 Landscape Conservation Area 
 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

1 (General) 

Page 31



30 Landscape 

31 Landscape 

45 Renewable Energy 

 

Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan 

GP1 Development Control Guidance 

EP 18 Renewable Energy 

EN1 Landscape Character 

EN2 Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 (February 2012) 

 

Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010). 

 

Technical Advice Note 8 Renewables (2005) 

 

Practice Guidance: Planning for Renewable and Low Carbon Energy - A Toolkit for Planners’, 

Welsh Assembly Government (2010) 

 

Practice Guidance Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Energy (February 2011) 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Wind Energy Developments (January 1994). 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member Called the application to the planning committee on the basis of the impact on adjacent 

dwellings, visibility with other turbines which are clustered around the village of Rhosybol. 

 

Community Council Refuse. 

 

Highways The Traffic Management Plan “TMP” is satisfactory & an informative as regard a survey of the 

public highway prior to commencement of the development.  

 

An informative is alos recommended making clear that all works within the highway can be carried out via 

a section 278 agreement and section 38 agreement on land in private ownership. These agreements can 

take 3 months to complete. 

 

Drainage No objections. 

 

Environmental Services Conditional permission. 

 

Environmental Advisor Is content that there is sufficient distance from the turbine to the hedge(Natural 

England: Technical Information Note 051). Some issues were raised by the council’s Ecological Adviser in 

relation to restoration of features affected by highway improvements to facilitate construction of the 

development. 

 

Built Environment  Not able to support the current proposal on the grounds that there 

would be a significant adverse local visual impact; a cumulative landscape and visual Impact and a new 

and adverse Impact on the coastal AONB landscape at Traeth Dulas. 

 

National Grid No objection to the above proposal on the understanding that a minimum safety clearance 

of 125.5m is maintained from our high voltage transmission overhead line – Pentir – Wylfa. 

Page 32



Arqiva No objections on the grounds of the effect on television reception. 

 

Welsh Water No comments. 

 

Environment Agency Low environmental risk. 

 

Countryside Council for Wales  

 

Protected Sites 

 

The application will not affect, either directly or indirectly, the features, functionality or integrity of any 

statutory protected sites of ecological, geological or geomorphologic interest. 

 

Protected Species 

 

The application site has been subject to survey and assessment in respect of statutory protected species. 

We consider the assessment has been completed to a satisfactory standard for the purpose of informing 

the decision making process, but wish to make the following comments: 

(i) As with wind energy developments we advise that the turbine is sited such that a 50 meter buffer is 

maintained around linear features such as woodlands, river corridors, large hedgerows or agricultural 

dwellings. This is due to areas being utilised by bats for foraging, commuting or roosting purposes and 

follows current guidance. (Natural England: Technical Information Note 051). 

(ii) Associated infrastructure works are to avoid any habiatats which may be of ecological value. Provided 

these recommendations are fully implemented the proposals are unlikely to be detrimental to the 

favourable conservation status of any populations of statutory protected species present in their natural 

range.        

 

Landscape 

 

The application site is not located within or immediately adjacent to the boundaries of any statutory 

protected landscapes, nor areas that are classified as having outstanding qualities on LANDMAP. CCW 

has not assessed the proposal in respect  of its potential landscape and visual impact. However please 

note that that as adevelopment in the open countryside, we have not given consideration to local or 

regional landscape interests. Furthermore, in assessing the potential impact of the proposed development, 

we advise that consideration should be given to the cumulative impacts of this wind energy development 

along with others in the area (either existing or currently within the planning process). 

 

Local & Regional Interest 

 

To comply with your authority’s general duty under the NERC Act consideration should be given to 

possible  adverse effects on such interests. 

 

To conclude, CCW does not object to the proposals. 

 

In relation to the Traffic Management Plan “TMP” CCW have indicated that they do not wish to comment 

on the proposals. They have indicated that to comply with your authority's duty under section 40 of the 

NERC Act, to have regard to conserving biodiversity, your decision should take account of possible 

adverse effects on such interests. 

 

Ministry of Defence Conditional permission. 

 

Response to Publicity 

Page 33



427 Letters received objecting to the planning application on the following grounds: 

  

· Construction of a new link road near the junction with the B5111 would be prejudicial to highway 
safety due to increasing the speed of vehicles, oad is not gritted in winter, it is already an accident 
“hot spot” and there is a blind spot. 

· The road is not suitable for heavy Large Goods Vehicles & machinery. 

· In constructing & taking down the existing wall and hedges to improve the junction would also 
mean that wildlife would be affected. 

· Turbine would be far larger than existing turbines on Anglesey. It would dominate the landscape 
and be a major visual intrusion, causing unacceptable effect on the landscape character. 

· Visible from the AONB, Traeth Dulas. 

· Introduce a massive industrial structure into a previously unspoiled area. 

·  Cumulative impact with existing turbines. 

· The nearest dwelling would be 330m from the turbine and effect on the residents within the 
immediate vicinity would be totally unacceptable. It would have a substantial adverse effect on the 
visual amenity and residential amenity of these properties. 

· The principal of the development should be re-addressed in view of the recent High Court 
Judgement (Sea and Land Power Energy Ltd v SOS for Communities and Local Government 
Great Yarmouth Borough Council). Equal weighting should be given to all policies; renewable 
policies should not take precedent over all other such as landscape into consideration. 

· LPA are referred to a planning appeal in Pembrokshire where in that instance the Planning 
Inspectorate state that the impact of the turbine is significantly adverse and that the LPA were right 
to take the stance from the outset in stating this. 

· There would be a “backclothing” effect against the backdrop of Snowdonia. 

· Result in a distraction to motorists at the crossroads of the B5111. 

· Quality of the photomontages is poor and misrepresentative. 

· Agent should be requested to produce a new LVIA. 

· Noise 

· Health Effects/existing ailments would be exacerbated. 

· The proposal would prevent the owners of an existing property using it as a bed and breakfast in 
the future. 

· Visual residential amenity from an adjacent property (photographs of views supplied), proposal is 
too close. 

· Proposal does not adhere  to policies in relation to requisite distances from residential properties. 

· Copy of the house of Lords Bill on erecting wind turbines (Minimum distances from residential 
properties) enclosed. 

· Astonished that the agent had offered Rhosybol Community Council £5,000. 

· Ownership issues as regards the forms. 

· Choice of location, applicant’s property not affected by the proposal. 

· Shadow Flicker. 

· Contended that the applicant is canvassing support by people not affected by the proposal. 

· Effect on house prices. 

· Turbine is over the acceptable height for micro generation. 

· Effect on tourism. 

· Turbine would be one  and half times higher than pylons. 

· Such structures in higher wind speed areas elsewhere are shut down for long periods due to the 
excessive wind speed. 

· Anglesey does no want to end up like the Isle of Sky which has been ruined by turbines. 

· The amount of concrete required would destroy a valuable resource. 

· Effects on Mynydd Bodafon which is within the AONB & Mynydd Parus and its walks. 

· A number of letters query various aspects of statements/reports submitted with the planning 
application. 

· Effect on wildlife & migrating birds. 

· Turbine too close to hedge. 

· Turbine out of scale. 

· Ynys Môn is a small island, relatively flat with extensive views. Turbines of the proposed height are 
quite inappropriate in a rural landscape. 

· Developer should be required to record the height of the proposed structures in feet as well as 

Page 34



metres to ensure local people understand the sheer scale of these industrial turbines. 

· Cumulative effect with existing turbines. 

· There are other forms of renewables which are more suited to Anglesey. 

· Proposal will not create local employment. 

· Effect on radio/television communications. 

· Precedence. 

· Token gesture for low carbon electricity. 

· Fail to see how the income will assist local choirs etc. 

· Landownership plans are misleading/incorrect. 
 

176 Letters received supporting the planning application on the following grounds: 

 

· Turbine will supply electricity for some 280 homes a year., offsetting carbon dioxide production 
and contributing to meeting renewable energy targets. 

· Assist with climate change /global warming. 

· Reduce dependence on fossil fuels. 

· Visual impact need to be put in context environmental damage climate change causes. 

· Noise will be within agreed planning guidelines. 

· Transport and access to the site will be a short term issue. 

· Upgrades to the road will benefit the wider area. 

· Turbine supports Anglesey Agenda 21 theme. 

· Development is in accord with Planning Policy. 

· Turbine will have no effect on tourism nor residential amenity. 

· Contribute to farm diversification. 

· Economic benefits of the turbine will result in enhanced management of farm activities supporting 
sustainable land management. 

· Community benefit of over £100,000 over the projects life will support the community. 
 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 
44C292A/SCR Screening Opinion for the erection of one wind turbine with a maximum hub height of 44 m, 
rotor diameter of up to 56m and a maximum upright vertical blade tip height of up to 72m together with the 
erection of transformer station and utility housing, formation of a new access track and hard standing and 
formation of a new link road near the junction with the B5111, EIA not required 02.02.12. 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 
Principle of development 
 
Policy C7 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan states:  
 
“There will be a presumption in favour of renewable energy projects provided that the impacts upon the 
locality are acceptable to the local planning authority. Where applicable, the proposals should be 
supported by an environmental assessment.” 
 
Policy 45 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan states:  
“Renewable energy projects will be permitted where it can be clearly demonstrated that there will not be 
any unacceptable impact on i. Landscape character, ii. Sites of international, national or local importance 
for nature conservation, iii. species which are of nature conservation importance iv. the standard of 
amenity enjoyed by the resident and tourist population and vi. Essential public services and 
communications. 
 
Policy 8B- Energy Developments of the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan states: 
 
“Applications for the development of renewable and non-renewable energy resources will be permitted 
where it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable adverse impact upon the environment. 
Preference will be given to the development of clean and renewable energy sources, but proposals for 
non-renewable energy projects will be permitted if they encourage the maximum use of energy efficiency 

Page 35



within their design. 
 
Since the last Planning Committee Planning Policy Wales was updated to Edition 5 in November. The 
most significant change was the clarification and strengthening of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. In terms of section 12.8 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy of the revised Planning Policy 
Wales there are no significant changes. 
 
Section 12.8.1 (Renewable and Low Carbon Energy) of Planning Policy Wales (5th Edition November 

2012 ) sets out targets and gives strong support for renewable energy projects in line with the Welsh 

Assembly Government’s Energy Policy Statement (2010). 

 

Planning Policy Wales at paragraph 12.8.15 states the impacts from renewable energy developments will 

also vary depending on their location and scale and require different policy and development management 

considerations. At 500KW the turbine subject to this report is a categorised as “Sub Local Authority” in 

Planning Policy Wales which includes developments of between 50KW & 5MW according to figure 12.3.  

Practice Guidance – Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Carbon Energy states there are no rigid 

categories to describe the scale of individual wind turbines but that installations tend to fall within 4 main 

bandwidths. The turbine subject to this report would fall within the “Medium” category with a typical rating 

of 500Kw, though the height is slightly larger to the blade tip than a typical installation of 65 meters. As a 

“Sub Local Authority” or a “Medium” installation the scale of the turbine is acceptable in principle in policy 

terms in this location but there are also detailed considerations within the policy considerations as detailed 

below. 

 

Section12.10.1 reproduced below highlights matters that should be taken into account in dealing with 

renewable and low carbon energy development and associated infrastructure by the local planning 

authority. This covers the positive aspects such as contribution to meeting national, UK and European 

targets and wider environmental, social and economic benefits. It also highlights the need to consider 

impact on the natural heritage, the coast and the historic environment and the need to minimise impacts on 

local communities. Other matters such as mitigation and infrastructure matters i.e. grid connection and 

transportation network are also highlighted within this section as follows: 

12.10.1 In determining applications for renewable and low carbon energy development and associated 

infrastructure local planning authorities should take into account:  

- the contribution a proposal will play in meeting identified national, UK and European targets and 

potential for renewable energy, including the contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions;  

- the wider environmental, social and economic benefits and opportunities from renewable and low 

carbon energy development;  

- the impact on the natural heritage (see 5.5), the Coast (see 5.6) and the Historic Environment (see 

6.5);  

- the need to minimise impacts on local communities to safeguard quality of life for existing and 

future generations;  

- ways to avoid, mitigate or compensate identified adverse impacts;  

- the impacts of climate change on the location, design, build and operation of renewable and low 

carbon energy development. In doing so consider whether measures to adapt to climate change 

impacts give rise to additional impacts (see 4.5);  

- grid connection issues where renewable (electricity) energy developments are proposed; and  
- the capacity of and effects on the transportation network relating to the construction and operation 

of the proposal. 
 
Technical Advice Note 8 Renewables (2005) (paragraph 14) states the Assembly Government has a target 
of 4TWh of electricity per annum to be produced by renewable energy by 2010 and 7TWh by 2020. In 
order to meet these targets the Assembly Government has concluded that 800MW of additional installed 
capacity is required from onshore wind sources. 
 
Paragraph 2.12 of TAN 8 states the Assembly Government expects local planning authorities to 
encourage, via their development plan policies and when considering individual planning applications, 

Page 36



smaller community based wind farm schemes (generally less than 5 MW).The paragraph explains that 
local planning authorities could define “community based”. There are no policy definitions which can 
currently be used and weighted in this regard. The applicants have confirmed in writing that they are willing 
to donate £5000 per annum to Llanbadrig Community Council towards sustainable community projects and 
are content for this to be subject to a legal agreement completed as part of any planning permission 
granted. Having regard to advice in paragraph 2.16 and Annex B of TAN this offer would not meet be 
justified as mitigation of development impacts through the planning process and is not necessary for the 
development to proceed. It is a matter for the developer if they wish to offer the benefits unilaterally or 
directly with any third parties but this is not a matter which has been weighted in the decision making 
process. 
 
Section 2 of Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities contains the following 

guidance: 

“2.1.1 The planning system has a key role to play in supporting the delivery of sustainable rural 

communities. It can help to ensure that appropriate development takes place in the right place at the right 

time by making sufficient land available to provide homes and employment opportunities for local people, 

helping to sustain rural services. Simultaneously, the planning system must respond to the challenges 

posed by climate change, for example by accommodating the need for renewable energy generation. It 

must also protect and enhance the natural and historic environment and safeguard the countryside and 

open spaces. The overall goal for the planning system is to support living and working rural communities in 

order that they are economically, socially and environmentally sustainable. Planning authorities should 

seek to strengthen rural communities by helping to ensure that existing residents can work and access 

services locally using low carbon travel and obtain a higher proportion of their energy needs from local 

renewable sources.” 

 

In relation to farm diversification Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 

contains the following guidance: 

3.7.2 Many economic activities can be sustainably located on farms. Small on-farm operations such as 

food and timber processing and food packing, together with services (e.g. offices, workshop facilities, 

equipment hire and maintenance), sports and recreation services, and the production of non-food crops 

and renewable energy, are likely to be appropriate uses. 
The council’s adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance: ‘Wind Energy Development’ (1994) is a material 
consideration in determining wind turbine applications. However, due to the age of the document, it is in 
the process of being replaced by an updated version called ‘Onshore Wind Energy’, which is currently at 
the 2nd post consultation stage and can only be attributed little weight. 
 
It is evident that the policies listed above provide a presumption in favour of renewable energy 
developments in meeting the identified targets for low carbon energy generation. The scale of the 
development classified as “Sub Local Authority” or “Medium” is acceptable in principle in this location 
though as described in the introduction of this report the turbine would have height to the tip of the blade of 
72 meters and a maximum rotor diameter of 56 meters. Weight can also be attributed to the benefits to the 
rural economy. As detailed in the policies listed there are also other environmental and community 
considerations which need to be assessed, and these are considered below. 
 
Landscape and Visual Impact 

 

The proposal would be located within an area designated as a Special Landscape Area and also within 

approximately 2.6 km of the AONB at Mynydd Bodafon.   

 

The application is supported by a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA )which includes 

photomontages, wireframes and maps which show the Zone of Theoretical Visibility (ZTV) and Cumulative 

ZTV (CZTV). 

 

The overhead power line is a strong landmark crossing the island, while its influence from the 

viewer diminishes with distance and topography; it is locally prominent, significant and has an 

adverse impact when viewed against the borrowed landscape of Snowdonia. 

Page 37



The capacity of the pylons to mitigate the visual impact of turbines will depend on the size and 

quantity of the structures. Where turbines are greater in size there may be an adverse cumulative visual 

impact As outlined above, the proposed turbine would be visible from a range of public sites including ones 

within and adjacent to the AONB. As stated in the LVIA the proposed turbine would have Substantial 

adverse Visual Impacts and a Significant Landscape Impact to the closest receptors which would include 

Public Footpaths and Highways, private residences. The radius of this individual impact will be greatest 

within 1km and diminish from 2km depending on local topography, built and landscape screening. The 

turbine may introduce a new visual and landscape element into some of the unspoilt parts of the coastal 

landscape and will have a cumulative visual and landscape impact particularly to the south of the site 

where its prominent combination with the overhead power line may add to the cumulative impact. 

 

For the reasons above we are not able to support the current proposal on the grounds that there would be 

a significant adverse local visual impact; a cumulative landscape and visual impact and a new and adverse 

impact on the coastal AONB landscape at Traeth Dulas. 

 

Residential Amenity 

 

The application is accompanied by a detailed assessment of the impacts on the residential amenities of 

surrounding properties. 

 

Policy C7 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan supports renewable energy developments if the impact on the 

locality is acceptable. Policy 45 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan requires that renewable energy development 

does not have an unacceptable impact on “the standard of amenity enjoyed by the resident and tourist 

population”. Policy EP18 of the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan includes the same criterion 

but requires it not to have a significant adverse impact.Policies 1 and GP1 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan and 

the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan are also material in as regard considering residential 

amenity. 

 

Paragraph 12.8.14 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5) (November 2012) states that:  

 

“…developers will need to be sensitive to local circumstances, including siting in relation to local landform, 

proximity to dwellings and other planning considerations…” 

 

Annex D of TAN 8 lists factors which should typically be reviewed to identify “technically feasible areas” for 

the development of onshore wind energy schemes. At paragraph 3.4 is states “500M is currently 

considered a typical separation distance between a wind turbine and residential property to avoid 

unacceptable noise impacts, however when applied in a rigid manner it can lead to conservative results 

and so some flexibility is again advised” 

 

The council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance Wind Energy Development (1994) “SPG” states that the 

council will give favourable consideration to renewable energy projects in those cases where it can be 

clearly demonstrated that there would be no adverse impacts on the listed considerations which include 

“the standard of amenity enjoyed by residents and the tourist populations”. Under 7.3 “Public Safety, 

Shadow Flicker Disturbances, Visual Intrusion and Impact on Highway Safety” the “SPG” contains a 

recommended standard that no turbine shall be sited nearer than 400 metres from the nearest dwelling 

house, with a possible exception of dwellings occupied by the owners of land where it is proposed to locate 

turbines. 

 

As indicated previously in the report little weight can be attributed to the draft SPG which is currently being 

prepared by the council. 

 

Officers have also considered decisions made by Planning Inspectors in relation to residential visual 

Page 38



amenity. Such an analysis indicates that a common threshold criterion applied by Inspectors for assessing 

visual residential amenity is where the change in the view would affect the fundamental living conditions. 

Various terms are used to describe this threshold, e.g. ‘overbearing’, ‘overwhelming’, ‘overpowering’ or 

‘oppressive’. 

 

The application is accompanied by a detailed assessment of the impacts on the residential amenities of 

surrounding properties including wireframes, with views of the turbine from the dwellings. There is a 

residential property at “Rhosydd Bungalow” where the impact on visual amenity has been identified as 

substantial by the applicant’s. The property is around 346 metres from the proposed turbine 

 

Officers have assessed the impact on “Rhosydd Bungalow” and consider that the residents visual amenity 

would be substantially affected to an “overbearing” or “overwhelming” degree for the following reasons: 

 

· Proximity, at some 346 meters. 

· Orientation, the turbine would be visible from the front elevation and garden. 

· Full extent of the turbine would be visible, there are no intervening features. 

· Scale, of the turbine, which would be a dominant moving feature with a rotor diameter of 56 m and 
with a maximum height to tip height of 72m it would be significantly higher than the existing pylons.  

 

Given the proximity, siting, extent of the turbine visible and scale of turbine officers consider that the 

turbine would be “overbearing” or “overwhelming” in relation to the residential visual amenity of “Rhosydd 

Bungalow”. The applicants were requested to comment and suggest mitigation if they deemed it 

appropriate but no response has been received. 

 

There is a property at “Hafod y Plas” which is closer to the proposed turbine at some 342 meters. Due to 

the oblique view from the primary elevation of this dwelling the impact on residential visual amenity was 

considered substantial but maybe not overbearing. 

 

Annex C of Planning Policy Wales provides advice on Shadow Flicker and Reflected light. Shadow flicker 

is only found to occur within properties up to 10 rotor diameters 

of a turbine and within 130 degrees either side of north at these latitudes in the UK. There are residential 

properties within this area. The applicants have submitted a shadow flicker analysis indicating the degree 

of shadow flicker which would affect identified properties. The applicant’s state that four properties in a 

predicted worst case scenario would experience shadow flicker. This varies from 8 hours 21 minutes to 3 

hours 25 minutes in a calendar year. The applicants have indicated that proposals will be well within 

acceptable limits but if the local planning authority consider that there is an impact they should set out its 

reasoning for a condition, then the applicant would be agreeable to considering a suggested suitable 

condition. 

 

There are no guidelines for the assessment of shadow flicker or set limits for duration in the United 

Kingdom. Inspector’s appeal decisions indicate that it is possible to provide a mitigation strategy to prevent 

harm from shadow flicker and that a condition could be imposed that would require a scheme including 

remedial measures should they be necessary. The applicants have been requested to confirm the type of 

mitigation measures which could be incorporated in such a scheme but no response has been received. 

On balance no objections are raised on this basis but mitigation would be necessary via a planning 

condition.  

 

Annex C goes on to state turbines can also cause flashes of reflected light, which can be visible for some 

distances. The guidance states that reflected light can be mitigated by the choice of blade colour and a 

condition has been recommended on the colour to mitigate impacts to mitigate the impacts. 

 

Many of the objections received refer to health & 

noise concerns. The council’s Environmental 

Page 39



Services Section has confirmed that they are 

content to grant approval subject to the conditions recommended in respect of noise,  

 

Other Material Considerations 

 

The National Grid originally objected to this application due to the proximity of their high voltage overhead 

line overhead line from Pentir to Wylfa, this objection was withdrawn on 28.08.12. 

 

It is understood that a connection to the grid will be subject of a separate application by the statutory 

undertaker. The applicants have confirmed that investigation work with the statutory undertaker are on-

going and initial feedback highlights that a connection point within reasonable distance of the site should 

be available. 

 

The Ministry of Defence have no objections to the development subject to conditions. 

 

The effects of the development on tourism is a material consideration. The Isle of Anglesey Council 

commissioned research on “The Impact of Wind Turbines on Tourism” which has been weighted in making 

the recommendation below. 

 

In terms of Health and Safety the proposals are not situated in proximity to any roads or buildings having 

regard to advice in Annex C, paragraphs 2.19 and 2.20 of “TAN 8”. 

 

The council’s Highways Section are satisfied with the proposal and the applicants have submitted a “Route 

Assessment Report and Traffic Management Plan”.  

 

In addition the applicant’s have provided a “Swept Path Analysis Drawings” indicating that it is possible to 

deliver turbine components to the application site and provided details where works to the highway 

network are required. Improvements will be required to the junctions and sections of the unclassified road 

leading from the A5111 to the application site. A condition has been recommended requiring that these 

works are completed prior to the construction of the development subject to this report. 

 

The Countryside Council for Wales are satisfied with the ecological information submitted with the 

application in so far as it relates to the turbines and their siting. Further ecological assessments were 

submitted in respect of the highway improvements required to provide access to vehicles in the 

construction process of the development. Some issues were raised by the council’s Ecological Adviser 

which are on balance matters which can be dealt with via a restoration condition, which would require 

restoration/re-planting of any hedges/”clawdds” removed to facilitate construction access. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The policies listed above provide a presumption in favor of renewable energy developments subject to the 

considerations listed. As detailed in the policies there are also other environmental and community 

considerations which need to be assessed and in this instance the proposed development is considered 

unacceptable for the reasons provided below. 

 

There would be a significant adverse local visual impact; a cumulative landscape and visual impact and a 

new and adverse impact on the coastal AONB landscape at Traeth Dulas. 

 

Officers have assessed the impact on “Rhosydd Bungalow” and consider that the residents visual amenity 

would be substantially affected to an “overbearing” or “overwhelming” degree. 

 

 

Page 40



 8. Recommendation  

  

That planning permission is refused for the following reasons: 

 

(01) The scale of the proposed development would result in a significant adverse local visual impact; a 

cumulative landscape and visual impact and an adverse impact on the coastal Area of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty at “Traeth Dulas”. This would be contrary to the provisions of policies C7, D1, D3 of the Gwynedd 

Structure Plan, 1, 30, 31, 45 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan, EN1, EN2, GP1, EP18 of the Stopped Ynys Mon 

Unitary Development Plan, Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5) (November 2012) and the Isle of Anglesey 

Council Supplementary Planning Guidance Wind Energy Development (1994). 

 

(02) The proximity, siting, extent of the turbine visible and scale of turbine would be “overbearing” or 

“overwhelming” in relation to the residential visual amenity of “Rhosydd Bungalow”. This would be contrary 

to the provisions of policies C7 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan, 1, 45 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan, GP1, 

EP18 of the Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan, Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5) (November 

2012) and the Isle of Anglesey Council Supplementary Planning Guidance Wind Energy Development 

(1994). 

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 
FF11 (Traffic)  
D32 Landscaping Schemes 
 
Ynys Mon Local Plan  
32  (Landscape) 
35 (Nature Conservation) 
 
Stopped Anglesey Unitary Development Plan 
TR3 (Highway Design) 
EN4 (Biodiversity) 
EN14 (Tree Preservation Orders & Hedgerows) 
EN16 (Landscape Features of Major Importance for Flora & Fauna) 
 
Technical Advice Note 5 Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) 
 

Technical Advice Note 11 Noise (1997) 

 

Welsh Government Circular letter 01.04.09 Transportation Issues Arising From Wind Farms 

 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 10

Page 43



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (DPJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit. 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is a departure from the development plan which the local planning authority are minded to 
approve. 
 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application site is located centrally in Cerrigman, adjacent to the A5025. 
 
This is an outline planning permission with the means of access included for consideration. 
 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

Having regard to the provisions of section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 it is 
necessary for determination to be in accord with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 
 
A6 - New Dwellings in the Countryside 
 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 
 
53 - Housing in the Countryside 
 
Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan 
 
HP5 - Countryside Hamlets & Clusters 
 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member - No response at the time of writing report 

 

Community Council - No response at the time of writing report 

 

Highways - Conditional permission. 

 

Drainage - Comments 

 

Welsh Water – No public sewers in the area. 

 

Environment Agency - Comments 

 

Response to Publicity 

None received at time of writing report. 

Page 44



 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

24C268: Outline application for the erection of a dwelling together with the construction of a new vehicular 

access on land at Gwelfor, Cerrigman. Conditionally approved 03/09/08. 

 

24C268A: Outline application for the erection of a dwelling, construction of a new vehicular access and 

installation of a private treatment plant on land adjacent to Gwelfor, Cerrigman. Conditionally approved 

05.02.09 

 

24C268B: Outline application for the erection of a dwelling together with the construction of a new access 

and installation of a new sewage treatment plant on land adjoining Gwelfor, Cerrigman.Conditionally 

approved 04.09.09. 

 

24C268C: Renewal of outline planning permission ref 24C268 for the erection of a dwelling together with the 

construction of a new access on land adj Gwelfor Cerrigman – Granted – 14.11.11 

 

24C268D Renewal of outline planning permission 24C268A for the erection of a dwelling together with the 

construction of a new access and installation of a private treatment plant Conditionally Approved 16.03.12. 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Planning History 

 

The planning application comprises a renewal of planning application 24C268B. 

 

Planning History and Principle of  Residential  
 
Having regard to the provisions of section 38(6) of the 2004 and act, if regard is to be had to the development 
plan for the purposes of any determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan 
for Anglesey comprises the approved Gwynedd Structure Plan (approved November 1993) and the adopted 
Ynys Môn Local Plan (adopted December 1996). 
 
The application site is located in the countryside under the provisions of the adopted Ynys Môn Local Plan 
(December 1996), and has thus been advertised as a departure from the development plan. This is due to 
Cerrigman not being listed under the provisions of policy 50 (Listed settlements) of this plan, which permits 
single dwellings within or on the edge of the listed villages and hamlets subject to the listed criteria being 
satisfied. 
 
Cerrigman is included as a settlement under the provisions of policy HP5 of the Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary 
Development Plan. This policy permits single dwellings on infill and other acceptable sites subject to the 
listed criteria. The application site is also located within the indicative frame  In view of the advanced stage 
reached in the preparation of the Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development weight can be attributed to its 
provisions such as to outweigh the provisions of the development plan in this instance. The principle of the 
development is thus acceptable subject to detailed planning considerations. 
 
Highways, Parking and Pedestrian Safety 
 
The Highways Section are satisfied with the proposal subject to the conditions recommended. 
 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The advanced stage reached in the preparation of the Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development Plan means 

that in this instance weight can be attributed such as to outweigh the provisions of the development plan and 

the proposal is recommended for approval. 

Page 45



 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit  

 

(01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than whichever is the later of the 

following dates: 

 

 i) The expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 

  

ii) The expiration of two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be 

approved. 

 

Reason: To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions: to enable the Council to review the suitability 

of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 92(2) of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) Application for approval of reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority 

before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To prevent the accumulation of planning permissions: to enable the Council to review the suitability 

of the development in the light of altered circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 92(2) of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(03) Approval of the details of the appearance to include floor plans, layout, scale and the 

landscaping of the site (hereafter called ‘the reserved matters’) shall be obtained in writing from the 

Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced. 

 

Reason: The application is for outline planning permission. 

 

(04) No development shall take place until trade descriptions of the materials proposed to be used on 

the external surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.  The approved materials shall be used in the implementation of the 

development. 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 

 

(05) The development hereby permitted shall be roofed with natural Welsh heather blue, heather red 

or heather grey mineral slates, unless alternative natural mineral slates of equivalent colour, texture 

and weathering characteristics are approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development. 

 

(06) The details to be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority in accordance 

with Condition (1) above shall include details of the proposed slab levels of the building(s) in relation 

to the existing and proposed levels of the site and the surrounding land.  The building(s) shall be 

constructed with slabs at levels that have been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory form of development. 

 

(07) Details to be submitted in accordance with Condition (02) above shall include means of disposal 

of foul and surface water from the development. 

 

Page 46



Reason: In order to ensure that the development is adequately drained. 

 

(08) The details to be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority in accordance 

with Condition (03) above shall include a scheme of landscaping and tree planting for the site.  The 

approved scheme shall be implemented not later than the first planting season after the occupation 

of the buildings or completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. 

 

Reason: In the interests of visual amenities of the locality. 

 

(09) Any trees or shrub which forms part of the approved landscaping scheme which within a period 

of five years from planting fails to become established, becomes seriously damaged or diseased, 

dies or for any reason is removed shall be replaced in the next planting season by a tree or shrub of a 

species, size and maturity to be approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality. 

 

(10) The access shall be laid out and constructed strictly in accordance with the submitted plan 

before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter shall be retained and kept free from 

permanent obstruction and used only for access purposes. 

 

Reason: To minimise danger and inconvenience to highway users. 

 

(11) The access shall be constructed with its gradient not exceeding 1 in 20 for the first 5 metres back 

from the nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway. 

 

Reason: To minimise danger and inconvenience to highway users. 

 

(12) The access shall be completed with a concrete/asphaltic surface for the first 5 metres from the 

nearside edge of the County Highway with the surface water drainage system completed and in 

perfect working order before the use hereby permitted is commenced. 

 

Reason: To minimise danger and inconvenience to highway users. 

 

(13) The highway boundary wall/hedge/fence or any new boundary erected fronting the highway shall 

at no time be higher than 1 metre above the level of the adjoining county road carriageway along the 

whole length of the site's boundary with the adjoining highway and nothing exceeding this height 

erected within 2m. of the said wall. 

 

Reason: To provide adequate intervisibility between the access and the existing public highway for the safety 

and convenience of users of the highway and of the access. 

 

(14) The car parking accommodation shall be completed in full accordance with the details as 

submitted before the use hereby permitted is commenced and thereafter retained solely for those 

purposes. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Highway Authority. 

 

(15) Foul water and surface water discharges must be drained seperately from the site. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system. 

 

(16) No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly to the public sewerage 

Page 47



system unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason:  To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and safety of 

existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 

 

(17) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into the 

public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the environment. 

 

(18) The details to be submitted for the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in 

accordance with Condition (03) above shall include a scheme for parking, garaging and manoeuvring 

and the loading and unloading of vehicles in accordance with the Local Planning Authority’s “Car 

Parking Standards” 2008 (or any subsequent amendments). The approved scheme shall be 

implemented and made available for use before the development hereby permitted is occupied and 

that area shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose. 

 

Reason To enable vehicles to draw off, park, load/unload and turn clear of the highway to minimise danger, 

obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway. 

 

(19) The dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code for Sustainable 

Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credits under category ‘Ene 1 – Dwelling Emission Rate’ 

in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 11
th

 

November 2010 (Version 3). The development shall be carried out entirely in accordance with the 

approved assessment and certification. 

 

Reason: To mitigate the causes of climate change and ensure resilience against the predicted future climate 

changes. 

 

(20) Construction of the dwelling hereby permitted shall not begin until an ‘Interim Certificate’ has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum 

Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credits under ‘Ene 1 – Dwelling Emission 

Rate’, has been achieved for the dwelling in accordance with the requirements of the Code for 

Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 11
th

 November 2010 (Version 3). 

 

Reason: To mitigate the causes of climate change and ensure resilience against the predicted future climate 

changes. 

 

(21) Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable Homes ‘Final 

Certificate’ shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority certifying 

that a minimum Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credits under ‘Ene 1 – 

Dwelling Emission Rate’, has been achieved for the dwelling in accordance with requirements of the 

Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 11
th

 November 2010 (Version 3). 

 

Reason: To mitigate the causes of climate change and ensure resilience against the predicted future climate 

changes. 

 

 9. Other Relevant Policies  

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 
 
A2 - Housing Land 
D3 - Landscape Conservation Area 

Page 48



D28 - Natural Mineral Slate  
D29 - Design 
FF11 - Traffic  
FF12 - Parking Standards 
  
Ynys Mon Local Plan  
 
1 - General Policy 
26 - Parking 
31 - Landscape  
42 - Design 
48 - Housing Development Criteria 
 
Stopped Ynys Môn Unitary Development Plan 
 
GP1 - Development Control Guidance 
GP2 - Design 
TR10 - Parking Standards 
EN1 - Landscape Character 
 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5)   

SGP: Parking Standards (2008) 

 

SPG: Design Guide (2008) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 11

Page 51



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The applicant is related to a ‘relevant officer’ as defined within paragraph 4.6.10.4 of the Constitution. 

 

The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 4.6.10.4 of the 

Constitution. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The application site is situated within the development boundary of both the Ynys Môn Local Plan and the 

stopped Unitary Development Plan.  The proposal involves the construction of a terrace of 5 number two-

storey dwellings together with the construction of a new vehicular access.   

 

The dwellings will be situated at the rear of the site with parking facilities to the front of the dwellings.  Access 

to the site will be gained off Longford Road. 

 

The site is situated within the development boundary of Holyhead.  The proposal occupies the site of the 

former English Methodist Church which has recently been demolished. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications key issues are whether the development complies with current policy, the design of the 

dwellings and whether the proposal will affect the amenities of surrounding properties. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 26 – Car Parking 

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 48 – Housing Development Criteria 

Policy 49 – Defined Settlements 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy A2 – Housing 

Policy D3 – Conservation Area 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

Policy D28 – Design 

Policy D29 – Design 

Policy D32 – Landscaping 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Page 52



Policy TR10 – Parking Standards 

Policy HP3 – New Housing Development 

 

Planning Policy Wales (5
th

 Edition, 2012)  

 

Technical Advice Note 12 – Design 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member – No response to date 

 

Town Council – No response to date 

 

Highways – No response to date 

 

Welsh Water – No response to date 

  

Drainage – Comments 

 

Response from members of the public 

 

The application was afforded three means of publicity.  These were by the posting of a notice near the site, 

the serving of personal notifications on the occupants of surrounding properties and the publication of a 

notice in the local press.  The latest date for the receipt of representations is 12
th
 December, 2012 and at the 

time of writing this report no representations had been received at the department. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

19C1015 – Application for the demolition of the existing  chapel together with the erection of 4 houses and 

construction of a new vehicular access at English Methodist Church, Longford Road, Holyhead – Approved 

17:02:09 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Policy Context - the site is situated within the development boundary of the settlement of Holyhead and is 

situated within a residential area.  Policy 49 of the Ynys Môn Local Plan, Policy HP3 of the stopped Unitary 

Development Plan and Policy A2 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan states that new housing developments shall 

be permitted on allocated sites or on other suitable sites within the development boundary.  The land has not 

been designated for any land uses under the adopted Local Plan or stopped Unitary Development Plan. 

 

Design – The character of the surrounding area is a mixture of terraced properties and semi-detached 

properties.  The design and scale of the proposed dwellings are similar to what is found in the locality.   

 

Affect on amenities of surrounding properties – The rear elevation of both properties on Lhassa Street 
which back onto the rear of the application site do not have any openings.  There is a boundary wall, of 
approximately 2 metre high, situated along the rear boundary of plot 1 and rear boundary of the property 
known as 6 Lhassa Street.  There is a distance of approximately 7 metres between the rear elevations of the 
proposed dwellings and the rear boundary of the site.  Section 9 – Proximity of development of the  document 
titled Supplementary Planning Guidance- Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment recommends 
that a distance of 7.5 metres between secondary aspects and site boundary as the proposal falls short by 0.5 
metres only it is considered that the proposal is acceptable and will not affect the amenities of the occupants 
of either the new dwellings or existing dwellings.   
 
To ensure that no future changes/extensions affect the amenities of neighbouring properties a Permitted 

Page 53



Development condition will be included on the decision notice.   
 
There is ample space within the site to accommodate the proposal without resulting in the overdevelopment 

of the site. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal complies with current local and national policies and the design of the proposed dwellings is 

similar to what is found in the locality.  The proposal will not have an adverse effect on the amenities of the 

occupants of neighbouring properties. 

 

 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit - subject to no additional adverse comments received following publicity.  The latest date for the 

receipt of representations is 12
th
 December, 2012. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The dwellings hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code for Sustainable 

Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credits under category 'Ene 1 - Dwelling Emission Rate' 

in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 11th 

November 2010 (Version 3), (or any subsequent equivalent and/or standard as may be in force at the 

time of registration). The development shall be carried out entirely in accordance with the approved 

assessment and certification.  

  

Reason: To mitigate the causes of climate change and ensure resilience against the predicted future climate 

changes.  

  

(03) Construction of the dwellings hereby permitted shall not begin until an 'Interim Certificate' has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum 

Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credits under 'Ene 1 - Dwelling Emission 

Rate', has been achieved for the dwelling in accordance with the requirements of the Code for 

Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 11th November 2010 (Version 3). (or any subsequent equivalent 

and/or standard as may be in force at the time of registration).  

  

Reason: To mitigate the causes of climate change and ensure resilience against the predicted future climate 

changes.  

  

(04) Prior to the occupation of the dwellings hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable Homes 'Final 

Certificate' shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority certifying 

that a minimum Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credits under 'Ene 1 - 

Dwelling Emission Rate', has been achieved for the dwelling in accordance with requirements of the 

Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 11th November 2010 (Version 3), (or any subsequent 

equivalent and/or standard as may be in force at the time of registration).  

  

Reason: To mitigate the causes of climate change and ensure resilience against the predicted future climate 

changes. 

 

(05) The provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B and E of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended) (or any Order re-voking or re-enacting 

Page 54



that Order) are hereby excluded. 

 

Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residential occupiers. 

 

(06) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

plan(s) submitted on the 07:11:12 under planning application reference 19C1015A. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

Page 56



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The applicant is related to a ‘relevant officer’ as defined within paragraph 4.6.10.4 of the Constitution. 

 

The application has been scrutinised by the Monitoring Officer as required under paragraph 4.6.10.4 of the 

Constitution. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The proposal involves the erection of a single storey pitched roof extension at the rear of the property 

together with the erection of a utility room on the north western elevation. 

 

The property is a single storey detached dwelling which is situated on a private residential estate within the 

settlement of Valley and lies within the designated Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications main issues are whether the design of the proposal is acceptable and whether the proposal 

will affect the amenities of the occupants of neighbouring properties or surrounding landscape. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 30 - Landscape 

Policy 42 – Design 

Policy 58 – Extensions 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

 

Policy D1 – Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty  

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

Policy D28 – Design  

Policy D29 – Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN2 – Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

Policy HP7a – Extensions 

 

Supplementary Planning Guidance – Design Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment 

Page 57



 

Technical Advice  

  

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member – No response to date 

 

Community Council – No response to date 

 

Welsh Water – Standard comments 

 

Drainage – Standard Comments 

 

Response from Members of the Public 

 

The application was afforded two means of publicity.  These were by the siting of a notice near the site and 

the serving of personal notifications on the occupants of neighbouring properties.  The latest date for the 

receipt of representations was 5
th
 December, 2012.  At the time of writing this report no letters of 

representation had been received at the department. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

49C171 – Erection of 6 bungalows on land at Newlands Park, Valley – Approved 05/03/96 - Section 106 

dated 22:02:96 (Highways and Public Health) 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Design – The two proposed extensions are of a single storey pitched roof extension and respect the 

character of the existing dwelling and surrounding properties. 

 

Effect on occupants of neighbouring properties – The site is screened at present with fencing along the 

side boundaries and hedging along the rear boundary.  There is a distance of 6.5 metres between the rear of 

the proposed extension and rear boundary of the site.  At the rear of the application site is a building plot that 

has not been developed to date.  Although the proposal does not fully comply with the requirements of the 

distances recommended under Section 9 of the document titled Supplementary Planning Guidance - Design 

Guide for the Urban and Rural Environment which states that a distance of 7.5 metres is required between 

boundary and secondary aspects the proposal is considered acceptable as the proposed windows are 

situated within the bedrooms.   

 

The application site is situated on a higher elevation than the neighbouring property, number 5 Gorwelion, 

where the proposed utility room and new bedroom opening is proposed.  Due to the difference in levels in 

both sites it is considered that the fencing will be retained in future to prevent the possibility of persons falling 

into the neighbouring garden.  

 

Due to the above the proposed new extension and openings will not affect the amenities of the occupants of 

neighbouring properties. 

 

Effect on surrounding landscape – The application site is located within an Area of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty (AONB). It is a statutory designation that recognizes its importance in landscape quality and nature 

conservation terms. 

 

The primary objective for an AONB designation is the conservation and enhancement of their natural beauty. 

Page 58



Local authorities have a statutory duty to have regard to AONB purposes and development control decisions 

affecting AONB’s should in the first instance favour conservation of natural beauty.  

 

As stated above the proposal respects the character of the existing dwelling and surrounding properties and 

therefore will not have a detrimental impact on the surrounding landscape. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The design of the extensions respects the character of the existing building and will not have a detrimental 

effect on the amenities of the occupants of the neighbouring properties or surrounding landscape. 

 

 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit – subject to no additional adverse comments received following publicity 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

plan(s) submitted on the 07:11:12 under planning application reference 49C171G/1. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 12

Page 61



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (DPJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 
The land is owned by the Isle of Anglesey County Council. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 
The application site comprises an area of around 0.5 hectares which has trees and vegetation present. The 
Design & Access Statement states that the area has been subject to ant-social behaviour in recent years. 
The application site is abutted by properties facing Mona Street and adjacent sheltered housing. 
 
The proposal entails a change of use of the area to a recreation ground, including clearance of vegetation, 
access & fencing improvements, provision of seating areas & landscaping. 
 
 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

· Principle of Development 

· Amenities of Area 

· Residential Amenity. 
 

 3. Main Policies  

 
Gwynedd Structure Plan 

CH1 (Recreation & Tourist Development) 

D4 (Location, Design & Siting) 

D14 (Protection of Broad-leafed Woodland0 

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

1 (General Policy) 

14 (Recreation & Community Facilities) 

17 (Recreation & Community Facilities) 

32 (Landscape) 

 

Stopped Ynys Mon Unitary Development Plan 

GP1 (Development Control Guidance) 

GP2 (Design) 

CC1 (Community Facilities) 

 

Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 (November 2012) 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member Called the application to the planning committee due to local residents concerns. 

Community Council Leave the decision to the local planning authority. 

 

Highways No recommendation. 

 

Page 62



Network Rail No objection. 

 

Welsh Water Conditional permission. 

 

Response to Publicity 

 

One petition received from residents of Bro Trehinion and Mona Street objecting to the planning application 

and signed by 45 people. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 
No material planning history. 
 
 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 
Principle of Development 

 

Policy CH1 of the Gwynedd Structure Plan states proposals for recreation and tourist development will be 

permitted where they accord with the policy framework of the plan. 

 

Policy 14 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan states that the council will permit recreational & community facilities 

shown on the proposals maps and other schemes subject to the following criteria: 

i. Increase the quality and range of facilities for local residents and visitors. 
ii. Relieve pressure on more environmentally sensitive areas. 
iii. Increase public access to open areas which have recreational value. 

 

Policy 17 of the Ynys Mon Local Plan states that the council will permit community facilities shown on the 

proposals plan and other schemes will be permitted on suitable sites within the development boundary or 

within the edge of other settlements. 

 

Policy CC1 of the Stopped UDP states that the council will permit the development of community facilities 

which maintain or improve community facilities within or adjacent to development boundaries. 

 

The principle of the development accords with the policies listed above. 

 

Amenities of the Area  

 

It is considered that positive weight can be attributed to the proposal will significantly improve the amenities of 

the area in terms of clearing the site and the quality of the proposals. 

 

Residential  Amenity 

 

A petition has been received objecting to the development. 

 

It is not considered that the proposal unacceptably affect the amenities of adjacent properties. Any anti-social 

behaviour which could occur would be a matter for the police. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The principle of the development is acceptable and that the proposals will enhance the amenities of the area. 

It is not considered that the development will unacceptably affect residential amenities. 

 

 

Page 63



 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit 

 

(01) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of (five) years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict conformity with the details shown 

on the plans tabled below and contained in the form of application, and in any other documents 

accompanying such application. 

 

Drawing No Drawing Name 

BM2624-A4-03 Location Plan 

1831.01 Site Survey 

1831.04 Planting Plan 

1831.02 Landscape Proposals 

1831.04 Grit stone Footpath 

1831.05 1.2 m High Kissing Gate and Fence Details 

 

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority or included within any provision 

of the conditions of this planning permission. 

 

Reason To ensure that the development is implemented in accord with the approved details. 

 

(03) No surface water shall be allowed to connect either directly or indirectly to the public sewerage 

system unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

Reason:  To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and safety of 

existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment. 

 

(04) Land drainage run-off shall not be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into the 

public sewerage system. 

 

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the environment. 

 

(05) The proposed development site is crossed by a public sewer with the approximate position being 

marked on the Statutory Public Sewer Record. Under the Water Industry Act 1991 Dwr Cymru Welsh 

Water has right of access to its apparatus at all times. No part of the building will be permitted within 

3 meters of the line of the public sewer. 

 

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewer and avoid damage thereto. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



 

Page 65



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (NJ) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is made on Council owned land. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The site is situated off London Road, Holyhead and is part of the enclosed back yard area serving a block of 

flats comprising 12 units arranged over 3 floors.  The rear yard area backs onto Network Rail owned land, 

with the Holyhead-Chester railway beyond. The land is used a servicing depot for trains. 

 

The application is a full application for provision of a cut-off drain and associated works to deal with land 

contamination issues which have arisen on the site. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications key issues are whether the proposal will affect the amenities of the surrounding properties. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

Policy D29 - Design 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

 

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5 November 2012) 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member – No formal reply to consultation although no objection to scheme communicated to case 

officer by telephone 

 

Town  Council – No objection 

 

Welsh Water – No reply at the time of writing 

 

Environmental Health Section – supportive of works which are being undertaken as a result of formal action 

following diesel spillage 

 

Page 66



Environment Agency – The remediation scheme is suitable for the level of contamination present 

 

Network Rail – comment sent in relation to requiring landowner consent and agreement to works being 

proposed.  These issues have been resolved satisfactorily between the parties and no further comment is 

offered. 

 

Response to Publicity 

 

The application was publicised by the posting of a site notice near the site, as well as individual notification to 

the occupants of neighbouring properties.  The latest date for the receipt of representations was 29
th
 

November 2012.  At the time of writing , no representations had been received. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

None 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Purpose of the Development and Amenity Effects:  The land to the rear of the block of flats at Llys 

Watling is on a lower elevation than land to the rear which is used as a servicing yard for trains.  Over time, 

spillages of fuel etc have seeped through the ground and entered into the Llys Watling site causing 

contamination. The rear yard area which residents use to dry washing is the only enclosed and secure area 

where children can play safely – the area to the front of the building is unenclosed grassed areas, paving and 

parking leading onto London Road. The development is necessary to address the issue of contamination by 

providing a cut off drain for any seepage from the depot which enters onto the Llys Watling site. This will 

ensure that Llys Watling residents are no longer exposed to contamination incidents. 

  

The works are contained underground but due to the difference in levels between the residential and depot 

areas, a pump is required to facilitate operation of the scheme.  Residents are currently exposed to noise 

from the depot itself and it would be undesirable that a scheme designed to address contamination affecting 

their homes should inadvertently lead to other amenity effects.  The matter was being addressed with the 

agent at the time of writing. If necessary, a condition is proposed in relation to noise from the pump. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The scheme is proposed as a direct result of coordinated action form the Council’s Environmental Health 

Section and the Environment Agency to address contamination in the rear yard / garden area of 1-12 Llys 

Watling.  The proposal is considered to address the matter in hand and will as a consequence improve 

residential amenity, subject to confirmation over noise. 

 

 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

 

 

Page 67



 

Page 68



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (SCR) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The application is made by the Council on Council owned land. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The proposal involves the widening of the existing slipway which provides access from the highway/parking 

area onto the beach.   

 

The site lies within the settlement of Trearddur Bay and access to the slipway is afforded off Lon Isallt. The 

site is used by both tourists and locals alike and the proposal will facilitate easier access onto the beach.  The 

site lies adjacent to the designated Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

 

The application site is situated within a zone C2 flood zone which is an area which is an area of the floodplain 

without significant flood defence infrastructure. 

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

The applications main issues are the affect of the proposal on the surrounding area and whether the proposal 

complies with Technical Advice Note 12: Development and Flood Risk. 

  

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Môn Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 28 – Tidal Inundation and River Flooding 

Policy 36 –Coastal Development 

Policy 37 – Public Access 

Policy 42 – Design 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy CH1 – Tourism 

Policy D4 – Location, Siting and Design 

Policy D32 – Landscaping 

 

Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidance 

Policy GP2 – Design 

Policy EN9 – Developments in or near wetlands, water courses and shorelines 

Policy SG2 – Development and Flooding 

Policy TO14 – Amenity Space 

Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk 

 

Technical Advice Note 12: Design 

Page 69



 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member – Happy for Officer to deal with the applicaiton 

 

Community Council – No response to date 

 

Environment Agency – Comments  

 

Welsh Water – No response to date 

 

Crown Estate – No response to date 

 

Highways – No response to date 

 

Countryside Council for Wales – Comments / Informatives 

 

Maritime Officer – No response to date 

 

Response from Members of the Public 

 

The application site was afforded three means of publicity.  These were by the posting of a notice near the 

site, the serving of personal notifications on the occupiers of neighbouring properties and the publication of a 

notice in the local press.  The latest date for the receipt of representations was the 12
th
 December, 2012 and 

at the time of writing this report no letters of representations had been received at the department. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

None 

 

 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

Effect of proposal on surrounding area – The application site is situated adjacent to the designated Area 

of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  The proposal is to widen the existing slipway onto the beach which will 

ensure safer and easier access for recreational boats and small craft to be launched and landed at this point. 

 

The works proposed is relatively minor works and will widen the slipway by no more than 1.4 metres for 16 

metres of its length.  The materials proposed will match that of the existing slipway. 

 

Due to the above it is not considered that the proposal will adversely affect the surrounding landscape. 

 

Flood Risk - The Flood Consequence Assessment submitted as part of the application complies with the 

requirements of Technical Advice Note 15 – Development and Flood Risk and confirms that the proposal will 

not result in further flooding problems. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

The proposal will improve the existing slipway by providing a safer access onto the beach.  The proposal will 

not have an adverse effect on the surrounding landscape and complies with current policies in terms of flood 

risk. 

 

 

 

Page 70



 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit - subject to no additional adverse comments received following publicity.  The latest date for the 

receipt of representations is 12
th
 December, 2012. 

 

(01) The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of 

five years beginning with the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 

(02) The development permitted by this consent shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

plan(s) submitted on the 07:11:12 under planning application reference 46LPA965/CC. 

 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



 

Page 72



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (RWW) 

 

 Recommendation: 

 

Permit 

 

 Reason for Reporting to Committee:  

 

The proposal is made by the County Council’s Waste Management Department. 

 

 1. Proposal and Site  

 

The site is located on the Council’s waste management site at Gwalchmai. 

 

This is an application to upgrade the HWRC by improving health and safety and traffic management 

measures in order to offer an enhanced waste recycling provision and experience for site users. 

 

The proposed changes to the centre are listed as follows: 

 

Improve general traffic management at the site in Gwalchmai by separating the public traffic that use the 

centre from heavy commercial lorries that service the waste transfer station.  This will be done by building a 

new roundabout within the site’s access.  As a result, the site’s weighbridge will be relocated to the 

carriageway servicing commercial lorries which will be developed in the southern part of the site.   

 

Increase the size of the centre to allow more skips to be placed on the site, and by so doing extending the 

uses and categories of waste that the public can dispose of at the centre.  Also locating a platform to include 

a sorting table where officers from the centre can separate the contents of the waste in order to dispose of it 

in the correct skips. 

 

Improve traffic management within the centre by creating a one way roundabout meaning that cars will not 

have to reverse within the site in order to turn around.   

 

 2. Key Issue(s)  

 

Will the proposal contribute towards improving the current waste disposal activities on the site.  Is the 

proposal acceptable as regards planning policy, and other material planning considerations. 

 

 3. Main Policies  

 

Ynys Mon Local Plan 

Policy 1 – General Policy 

Policy 29 – Waste Disposal 

Policy 32- Design 

 

Gwynedd Structure Plan 

Policy 18 – Waste Disposal Undertakings 

 

Ynys Môn Stopped Unitary Development Plan 

Policy GP1 – Development Control Guidelines 

Policy WP5 - Recycling 

Page 73



Policy WP7 – Civic Amenity Sites 

 

TAN 21 - Waste 

 

 4. Response to Consultation and Publicity  

 

Local Member – No comments. 

 

Community Council – No comments. 

 

Highways Authority – No recommendation 

 

Highway Authority (Drainage) – The site is not within the area served by the public sewer.  It is possible that 

the permission of the Environment Agency would be required for surface water discharge. 

 

Environmental and Ecological Consultant – Landscaping measures should be co-ordinated to include the 

Ecological Planning statement. 

 

Environmental Services (Health) – Officers from the centre should sort the waste on the platform provided for 

separating bags of waste. 

 

Welsh Water – No comments 

 

Environmental Agency – No objection. 

 

Standard comments to be included with any decision. 

 

Countryside Council for Wales – No objection. 

 

MOD – No objection 

 

Publicity was given to this application by placing an advert in the local paper, placing a notice adjacent to the 

site and by sending letters of notification to neighbours.  No comments were received as a result of the 

publicity. 

 

 5. Relevant Planning History  

 

48LPA851/CC - Change of use from a waste sorting, bulking and treatment depot to a waste sorting, bulking 

and treatment depot with a waste transfer station and a household waste recycling centre, together with the 

provision of additional storage areas, a weighbridge and an information centre on land adjoining   App – 

2/2/05 

 

48LPA851A/CC - Re-location of weighbridge and site office at Gwalchmai Recycling Centre, Gwalchmai – 

Approved 1/2/06 

 

48LPA851B/CC - Amendment of existing plans to modify the height of a roof at Cae’r Glaw Quarry, 

Gwalchmai – Approved 13/11/06 

 

48C79E/SCR - Application for a screening opinion for proposed upgrade at Gwalchmai Household Recycling 

Centre, Gwalchmai -  EIA not required 31/1/12 

 

 

Page 74



 6. Main Planning Considerations  

 

The requirements of TAN 21 : Waste, along with the objectives in the Regional Waste Plan outline the need 

to develop a sustainable network of facilities for handling waste with particular emphasis on the need to 

provide facilities for reusing and recycling waste.  The need to reuse or recycle waste products has increased 

significantly in response to European directives through the Landfill Regulations (Wales and England) 2000, 

to redirect waste from landfill sites to sources where sustainable use can be made of the waste. 

 

The household waste recycling centre at the Gwalchmai waste treatment site was granted permission in 

2005.  The national policies and guidelines noted above have placed a greater emphasis on recycling waste. 

As a result, recycling centres approved in the past need to be updated in order to meet the increasing use 

which is made of them today.   

It is considered that this application to upgrade the housing waste recycling centre is necessary in order to 

ensure the smooth operation of the Gwalchmai site in general.  It is considered that the works will make it 

easier for users to recycle their waste and will enable a wider choice of recycling options and it will also 

improve the access and accessibility to the whole site by improving the road network within the site.  Lengthy 

discussions were held with AMEC who prepared the application in order to safeguard as much as possible of 

the landscaping bund that separates and screens the centre from the A5.  As a result, it was agreed that the 

bund at the side of the centre could be cut into without interfering with the height of the bund when viewed 

from the A5.  Agreement was also secured on a landscaping and planting scheme which will replace trees 

and plants that are lost. There was concern regarding the platform for separating waste which is part of this 

application. The main concern related to any odours that would emanate from such activities when rubbish 

bags would be opened in the open air with the waste then being separated into the appropriate skips.  Since 

then, a visit has been  conducted to a similar recycling centre in Rhyl which operated a similar separating 

platform and it was a low level activity that would not detrimentally affect the amenities of other users at the 

centre.  The Environmental Health Section also noted that officers of the recycling site itself should separate 

the waste rather than members of the public. 

 

 7. Conclusion  

 

No objections were received from statutory consultees or members of the public to this application.  Based on 

the above report. it is considered that the development conforms with the local and national planning policies 

noted within the report. 

 

 8. Recommendation  

 

Permit with the following planning conditions: 

 

(01)  The works referred to in this permission must be begun within 5 years of the date of this 

permission. 

 

Reason:  To avoid the accumulation of planning permissions that have not been implemented. 

 

(02)  Appropriate and sufficient steps must be taken to ensure that the site is maintained in a clean 

and tidy condition to the satisfaction of the local planning authority.  No waste materials can be 

stored at any time outside the area that has been earmarked and no items can be left on the floor at 

any time. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that the site is developed appropriately and for the benefit of the visual amenities of the 

area. 

 

(03)  Unless a planning condition specifically states, or that there is a written agreement with the local 

Page 75



planning authority, the development must be built in accordance with the drawings, plans and details 

presented with the application dated 04/09/2012 and any other details approved consequently in 

writing by the waste planning authority.  

 

Reason:  To ensure that the site is developed appropriately. 

 

(04)  No work shall be permitted on the site which will cause dust to rise and all areas used by 

wheeled vehicles must be washed down or treated as necessary in order to avoid dust. 

 

Reason:  For the benefit of the amenities of neighbours and adjacent residents.  

 

(05)  Unless agreed otherwise in writing, no development permitted hereby can be commenced 

unless details are presented in relation to the of location and specification of any floodlights for the 

approval of the waste planning authority.  All the floodlights must be shaded so as to lessen the 

effect of the light defused upwards.   

 

Reason:  For the benefit of the amenities of neighbours and hereby residents. 

 

(06) Unless agreed otherwise in writing a detailed landscaping scheme must be presented for the 

approval of the waste planning authority within 6 months to the date of this permission, comprising a 

schedule of tree and shrub planting activity to be implemented subsequently in accordance with the 

requirements of condition 7. 

 

Reason:  For the benefit of the visual amenities of the area. 

 

(07) All the planting work included in the details in relation to landscaping and the planting of 

approved trees must be completed during the first planting and sowing season following the 

completion or use of the development, whichever happens sooner.    Any trees or plants which, 

within a period of five years of the implementation of the approved scheme, are removed, become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar 

size and  species, unless the local waste planning authority gives written consent to any variation. 

 

Reason: For the benefit of the visual amenities of the area. 

 

(08)  No activities approved by this permission will be allowed other than during the hours between : 

 

07:30 – 18:00 Monday to Sunday. 

 

Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of neighbours and nearby residents. 

 

(09) Unless otherwise approved in writing by the waste planning authority, no development approved 

by this permission can be commenced unless a report is presented noting how and who will operate 

the platform for separating rubbish bags for the written approval of the waste planning authority. 

 

Reason: For the benefit of the Health and Safety of the site. 

 

 

Page 76



 

Agenda Item 13

Page 77



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (EH) 

 

The applicant is related to a member of staff. 

 

It was determined that prior approval of the Local Planning Authority was not required for the above 

development and that it constituted permitted development. 

 

The matter is therefore reported for information purposes only.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

Page 79



Planning Committee: 05/12/2012 

 

 Report of Head of Planning Service (EH) 

 

It was determined that the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority was not required for the above 

development and that it constituted permitted development. 

 

The matter is therefore reported for information purposes only. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Site Visits
	6 Applications that will be Deferred
	7 Applications Arising
	10 Departure Applications
	11 Development Proposals Submitted by Councillors and Officers
	12 Remainder of Applications
	13 Other Matters

